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The best place to be . . . the best place to invest



our diversity is our strength

Corporate Vision and Mission

ANSA McAL shall be the leading conglomerate in the
region, continuously maximizing shareholder value by
achieving exceptional performance, fostering long
term confidence and respect, while generating sus-
tained growth for all stakeholders. This shall be
achieved by:

• Always delivering superior customer service 
that nurtures and grows a loyal customer base.

• Attracting, developing and retaining talented 
personnel by recognizing and rewarding 
outstanding performance.

• Creating an environment that encourages 
innovation and excellence.

• Recognizing regional and national needs and 
aspirations whilst protecting our environment 
for future generations.

WE MAKE THE FUTURE BETTER
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we see the best value of each person
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we work with the best people
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The Performance of the ANSA McAL Group

The year 2003 proved to be a satisfying year for the
ANSA McAL Group and is a significant step towards
achieving the objectives we set out in our Vision 2006
in 2002.

Our profit attributable to ordinary shareholders grew
by 19% to reach $243,182M (2002: $203,824M). As a
result, our EPS of $1.44, the highest we have ever
achieved, is 16% above the $1.24 we announced in
2002.

Our Vision 2006

In 2002 we set ourselves new targets. In particular, we
addressed the challenge of reinventing and growing
our existing businesses so that as a consolidated
Group we would be able to double our operating
profits within a five-year time frame. The targets and
our new vision have been boldy called: "Vision 2006."
I consider that the results we have achieved in 2003
represent a significant step towards making this vision
a reality. It is clear to me that the Board and our ded-
icated management teams consider that the targets
contained in Vision 2006 are well within our compass
and I remain confident that these targets will be met
on time as promised.

In my Chairman's statement last year I spoke of the
significant sums that we were spending on improving
our capital assets in readiness for the Free Trade Area
of the Americas (FTAA). I am pleased to report that all
capital expenditure projects have been completed
on time and on budget. Projects that have been

completed include a new furnace at Carib
Glassworks, the commissioning of the world's largest
concrete block-making plant at Bestcrete and a new,
state-of-the-art match line at Trinidad Match. In addi-
tion, new plants and equipment have been success-
fully installed at both ANSA McAL Chemicals and
ANSA Polymer.

These capital projects will allow our companies to
realise additional cost efficiencies, which, in turn will
allow us to compete in world markets. Barring any
major fluctuations in the exchange rate or commod-
ity prices, it will place us in an excellent strategic posi-
tion to exploit the opportunities that are presented by
the FTAA. 

Significant events in the year

A significant number of milestones and events
occurred in the Group in 2003. I take this opportunity
to highlight some of these.

We have successfully rolled out a new incentive
programme for middle and senior managers with the
Group. This programme is designed to reward those
who both add significant economic value to the
Group and make best use of the capital provided to
them. I am convinced that the successful results we
achieved in 2003 can, at least in part, be attributed
to the renewed focus on efficiency that this new
incentive plan rewards.

The Tatil Group implemented its Customer Relations
Management programme and had another suc-
cessful year. AMCO, our marketing and distribution
company, grew its business from existing lines and
added a significant number of new product lines to
the items it offers.

ANSA McAL Chemicals successfully launched new
products and in the new year will begin penetration of
Latin markets with its range of quality, value-added
products. Trinidad Publishing had a successful year
with the new format Guardian, which proved to be
extremely popular with both readers and advertisers
alike, and our radio stations continue to dominate the
local airwaves.

At both Carib and Carib Glassworks, we continued
the thrust of our capital investment programmes
geared to providing us with the technologies that will
enable us to exploit the opportunities provided by the
FTAA. At Carib, we extended our refrigeration capaci-
ty, improved our water treatment facilities and com-
missioned a new CO2 plant. These changes will
improve the quality of our products. We also under-
took a multi-million dollar upgrade of our bottling
lines. I am pleased to report that the Carlsberg and
Smirnoff Ice brands continue to perform well and
have been successfully launched in several islands in
the Caribbean. 

At Carib Glassworks, we introduced new Triple Gob
Technology and replaced one of our older furnaces.
This allows us to continue to pursue the light weighting
initiatives that we started successfully in the previous
year. Carib Glassworks continues to be a significant
earner of foreign currencies for the Group and the
country. 

A Norman Sabga
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Our Auto companies in Trinidad enjoyed significant
growth and the launch of the pioneering and highly
innovative "In One" concept in Trinidad, combining
the financing, insurance cost and servicing cost of a
vehicle into one low convenient payment, has gener-
ated significant customer excitement and success for
our companies. 

Our merchant bank, ANSA Finance and Merchant
Bank, continues to grow at a very satisfying rate. The
Bank achieved an EPS this year that is 43% higher
than the corresponding figure for the previous year.
With its acquisition of TATIL during 2004, we expect
even greater results from our Financing Group. 

Our overseas operations 

The overseas operations of the ANSA McAL Group
continued to perform in accordance with our bud-
geted expectations. In Barbados, Stokes and Bynoe,
our distribution company, formed a new company,
Breweries Distribution Limited, to handle the distribu-
tion of our beverage brands. McEnearney Quality Inc
continued the strong recovery it made in 2002 with a
21% increase in turnover in a highly competitive new
car market.

Consolidated Finance increased its market share,
and its net earnings, buoyed by the launch of inno-
vative products and grew by 54%.

In Guyana, the results of our trading company
again proved to be successful, despite a difficult
economic and political climate in that country. 

In 2003, we used the model of our Guyana opera-
tion in a new company set up in St Lucia geared to
marketing our beverage products. I am pleased to
report that the results of this company surpassed our
expectations. 

Dividend and return to shareholders 

Your Board of Directors has recommended a total div-
idend of $0.65 per share. In 2003 our share price
improved 44% to close at year-end at $23.06. This
positive movement in our share price reflects the mar-
ket's confidence in the ANSA McAL brand and our
ability to generate consistent and superlative returns.

The economic outlook for Trinidad and Tobago 

The future for our twin island state remains very pos-
itive with all key economic indicators reflecting the
confidence of both local and international investors.

Investment continues to flow into the country at
unprecedented rates providing our Group with oppor-
tunities to act as partners with large multi-national
companies in large capital investment projects.

With this confidence, the expected oil and gas tax
revenues should provide the Government with the
necessary impetus to both reduce the rates of cor-
poration tax that we suffer on our Group's profits as
well as provide additional incentives for capital invest-
ment by local investors.

Because of its significant investment in fixed and
capital assets made over the last two years, the ANSA

McAL Group is well positioned and committed to
exploiting opportunities that several commentators
expect to emerge in the medium term.

One Caribbean Market – A Sea of Great Potential

The unification of Caribbean markets provides us with
a sea of great potential for investment and growth.

It was with this in mind that the Board decided to
pursue the acquisition of A S Bryden & Sons in
Barbados. The acquisition of Bryden's Barbados is
seen as strategic to our plans for future development
of markets in the Caribbean and allows the ANSA
McAL Group, through the distribution arms of Bryden's
Barbados, to extend the Group's presence in the
region. 

The Board recognizes that in order to achieve the
objectives that we have set in Vision 2006, we have to
strengthen and renew our export thrusts. The acquisi-
tion of A S Bryden & Sons (Barbados) Limited when
coupled with our existing marketing avenues provides
us with a substantial Caribbean reach to channel our
goods into new markets at competitive prices.

The successful acquisition of this group at a price of
$7 Barbados dollars per share will provide the Group
with significant and exceptional returns in the future.
The synergies we will be able to achieve with our own
distribution companies will allow us to be a dominant
player in wholesale markets in Barbados.

We will continue to look diligently for additional
acquisitions that will provide the same potential
returns to shareholders of the ANSA McAL Group.

The acqusition of TATIL by ANSA Finance and
Merchant Bank 

The ANSA McAL Group has for some time been con-
sidering the benefits that could be derived from con-
solidating all of our financial service companies into a
single group. With this in mind, during the current year,
ANSA Finance and Merchant Bank Limited will acquire
a 100% shareholding in the TATIL Group from ANSA
McAL Group. The consideration for this purchase will
be satisfied by the issue of new shares in ANSA
Finance and Merchant Bank to ANSA McAL Limited.
The acquisition price to be paid is currently being
independently quantified by professionals in London.

We believe that this acquisition by ANSA Finance
and Merchant Bank will provide the springboard for
superlative growth in our financial services compa-
nies. 

First, the acquisition will improve the risk profile of the
companies and, with a more substantial balance
sheet, allow both to compete on level terms with any
current or future market player.

Second, the acquisition will unlock huge marketing
opportunities for both existing and new products. New
products or services that are in development include
underwriting services, launch of mutual fund prod-
ucts, the provision of trustee and asset management
services and bond issues tailored to meet the needs
of the borrower.
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Third, we consider that the acquisition will, through
an integrated approach to the financial governance
of the financial services group, result in a more effi-
cient use of resources and, ultimately, operational
savings.

The ANSA McAL Foundation

The ANSA McAL Foundation is an independent body
from the ANSA McAL Group of Companies.

The Foundation was formed to evaluate and fund
projects and activities that are deemed to be of the
highest importance to our nation. 

In previous years, the Group has made an annual
contribution to the Foundation of 1% of its profits. As I
reported last year, the Foundation has now reached
the point where it can be considered self-financing
and, accordingly, this year's financial statements do
not include any contribution.

The ANSA McAL Family

I take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors, the
Management Teams in the Group, our committed
staff and our shareholders and customers for the loy-
alty and dedication so strongly evidenced through
the results of the Group for the year. 

During the year, Mr Horace Bhopalsingh retired from
the Board and as Chief Executive Officer of Carib. Mr
Bhopalsingh has relocated to Canada and I would
like to take this opportunity to thank him for his contri-
bution and dedicated service to the Group over the
years. 

Mr Randolph de Silva, our former Company
Secretary and one of the Group's longest serving
employees retired during the year. Mr G Leonard
Lewis and Mrs Lucille Mair also retired from the Board
during the year. I would like to thank them for their
excellent contribution to the Group during their years
of service. 

I am pleased to report that Ms Stephanie Daly has
joined our Parent Board. I take this opportunity to wel-
come Ms Daly and I look forward to her contribution
towards our objectives set out in our Vision 2006. 

In addition, we decided to strengthen our corpo-
rate base with the following appointments: Mr David B
Sabga rose to the position of Deputy Chairman while
Mr Gerry C Brooks was appointed Chief Operating
Officer. Mr David G Inglefield joined the company as
Group Marketing Director, having spent a number of
years in the advertising and communications fields. I
welcome these new directors to their new positions. 

I remain extremely confident that with the contin-
ued support of our trading partners, our suppliers, our
dedicated management teams, our staff and our
shareholders that the ANSA McAL Group will continue
to produce excellent results.

A Norman Sabga
Chairman and Chief Executive
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“I see the potential of brands. There is a loyal
following to world class brands. ANSA McAL
delivers a diverse array of brands and serv-
ices suited to every individual.”
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ANTHONY N SABGA 

Anthony N Sab ga , CMT, Hon
LL.D (UWI), is the former
Chairman of ANSA McAL
Limited. He is the founder of
the ANSA Group and is
Chairman of several  compa-
nies in both Groups.

In 1998 Mr Sab ga was
a warded the Trinidad and
Tobago Chaconia Medal
(Gold) for entrepreneurship
and business. In October of
the same year he was
named Master Entrepreneur
at the annual Entrepreneur
of the Year awards cere m o-
ny and later that month he
was the recipient of a
Doctor of Laws degree,
Honoris Causa, from the
University of the West Indies.
In 2002 Mr Sab ga was
recognised as an Icon of the
Nation for being one of the
country's Thinkers, M overs
and Shapers.

STEPHEN R EDGHILL

Stephen Edghill has serve d
as President and Chief
Executive Officer of
McEnearn ey Alstons
(Barbados) Limited,
Bridgetown, Barbados, since
January 1, 1998.

Educated at St Mary's
College in Port of Spain,
Stephen Edghill joined the
ANSA Group in 1967 and
was transferred to Barbados
in 1972 to manage its opera -
tions there. Mr Edghill also
holds directorships in several
other companies in the two
groups of companies.

W DAVID CLARKE

Mr W David Clarke, M A
(Cambridge), is an attorn ey-
at-law and is one of the sen-
ior partners at J D Sellier &
Co. He is also a member of
the Law Association. He is
most involved with corp o-
rate and commercial trans-
actions, c o nveyancing,
mort gage, debenture and
other security instruments,
loan agreements, intern a-
tional finance transactions,
insurance law, petroleum,
gas and oil law, e nvironmen-
tal law, joint venture transac-
tions, land development
schemes, admiralty matters,
civil litigation matters and
arbitration.

Mr Clarke is a member of
the Group's Audit
Committee. He has repre-
sented Trinidad and To b a g o
on a regular basis in con-
tract bridge over the past 25
years.

STEPHANIE DALY

Stephanie Daly is an attor-
n ey-at-law and a partner in
the firm of Pollonais, Blanc,
de la Bastide & Jacelon. She
is a former Chairman of
WASA and President of the
Law Association of Trinidad
and Tobago and has serve d
on the law commission for
some 20 years. At present,
she is a member of the
Public Service Appeal Board
and the Statutory Authorities
Appeal Board , and chairs a
committee established to
set up a new Family Court.

RAY A SUMAIRSINGH

Mr Ray A Sumairsingh, MBA
(Finance), is an Associate of
the Chartered Institute of
Bankers (CIB) and Managing
Director of ANSA Finance
and Merchant Bank Ltd. He
has over 16 years of execu-
tive experience in banking
and insurance.

Mr Sumairsingh is a Director
on the Boards of TATIL, Tatil
Life Assurance Limited and
Consolidated Finance Ltd
(Barbados). He is also a
Director of the Unit Trust
Corporation, a former
President of the Insura n c e
Association of the
Caribbean (IAC) and past
President of the Association
of Trinidad and To b a g o
Insurance Companies
(ATTIC).
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DAVID G INGLEFIELD

Educated in Trinidad and the
United Kingdom, David G
Inglefield s career in advertising
has spanned 35 years, forming
his own agency, Inglefield Ogilvy
& Mather, in 1993. The agency
holds the regional franchise for
Ogilvy & Mather Worldwide and
J Walter Thompson.

He is a past President of the
Advertising Agencies Association
of T&T, elected on four occasions
and has served as Secretary to
the Caribbean Council of
Advertising Agencies. He is an
active board member of Youth
Business of T&T. He is a member
of the ANSA McAL Group Parent
Board and Executive
Committee, Chairman of AMCO,
ANSA McAL Trading (St Lucia)
Ltd and Trinidad Broadcasting
Company, also a board member
of the Trinidad Publishing
Company Ltd, Carib Brewery
Limited, A S Bryden & Sons
(Barbados) Ltd and Breweries
Distribution Limited, Barbados. In
November 2003, Mr Inglefield
joined the ANSA McAL Group as
the Group Marketing Director.

DAVID B SABGA

David B Sab ga is Deputy
Chairman of ANSA McAL
Limited. He is also the
Chairman of the Automotive
Sector and member of the
Executive Committee and
holds a BA (Economics).

Mr Sab ga began his career
with the ANSA Group with
Standard Equipment and
Crown Industries Limited of
which he is now Chairman.

GERRY C BROOKS

An attorn ey-at-law, Gerry Brooks
is the Chief Operating Officer of
the ANSA McAL Group, having
been promoted in July, 2003 to
this office, after his 8-year tenure
as Managing Director of the Tatil
Group. Educated in the
Caribbean and North America,
he is also the holder of an MBA,
Columbia University (Dean s
Honour Roll).

A former Deputy Chairman of
ICN (now NBN), he holds several
directorships in the Group includ-
ing McEnearn ey Alstons
(Barbados) Limited, TATIL & Tatil
Life and is a member of the
ANSA McAL Group Parent Board
and Executive Committee. He is
a Director of the Caribbean
Court of Justice, the Trinidad and
Tobago Insurance Institute, the
Insurance Association of the
Caribbean and the University of
the West Indies. Mr Brooks is also
Chairman of the Family Planning
Association, a former member of
the Police Service Commission
and has served on several
C abinet appointed committees.
He is also a past Rotary
President.

A NORMAN SABGA

A Norman Sab ga is
Chairman of ANSA McAL
and Group Chief Executive.

He is Chairman of the
Executive Committee,
Compensation Committee,
Caribbean Development
Company Limited, ANSA
McAL Enterprises Limited
(ABEL and Bestcre te
Divisions), and holds director-
ships on the boards of
McEnearn ey Alstons
(Barbados) Ltd, Carib
Brewery (St Kitts and Nevis)
Ltd, ANSA McAL (Guyana)
Ltd, ANSA McAL (US) Inc,
O'Meara Holdings Ltd,
Tobago Marketing Co Ltd,
Trinidad Lands Ltd and
Grenada Breweries Ltd.
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H C GLENN CASTAGNE

H C Glenn Castagne holds a
Bachelor of Technology (Honours)
and is an Aeronautical Engineer.

As Executive Director at the Group
Head Office, he is now responsible
for identifying opportunities for
growth in the manufacturing sector.
He is Chairman of Trinidad Match
Limited and also holds directorships
on the boards of Caribbean
Development Company Limited,
ANSA McAL Enterprises Limited
(ABEL/Bestcrete Divisions), Penta
Paints Caribbean Limited and
Tobago Marketing Company
Limited. He is also a board member
of the Trinidad & To b a g o
Manufacturers Association. Mr
Castagne is a former Managing
Director of ANSA McAL Enterprises
Ltd, Agos Manufacturing and
Johnson & Johnson (Trinidad)
Limited.

GRENFELL KISSOON

Mr Grenfell Kissoon is Managing
Director of Trinidad Publishing
Company Limited and holder of a
BSc (Management).

He joined ANSA McAL in 1994 as
Managing Director of Trinidad
Broadcasting Company.

Mr Kissoon is Chairman of the Board
of Trinidad Broadcasting. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr Kissoon was
General Manager of TTT and
Manager, Management Controls at
Caroni (1975) Ltd.

W KEITH WELCH

W Keith Welch is Corpora t e
Secretary and Registrar. He is also
Director/Secretary of Alstons
Limited, CDC (St Kitts) Limited, McAL
(St Kitts) Limited and O Meara
Holdings Limited and is a Trustee of
the Alstons Pension Fund Plan.

C ANTHONY BEAUBRUN

Parent Board Director since 1990,
C Anthony Beaubrun holds a BSc
(Chemical Engineering).

He is Chairman of Hard ware & 
Oilfield Equipment Company Ltd,
Alstons Shipping Limited and of the
Group's Audit Committee.
Mr Beaubrun also holds a director-
ship on the Board of Cox &
Company, St Lucia. A past 
President of the Trinidad and
Tobago Chamber of Industry and
Commerce Inc, Mr Beaubrun is 
also Honorary Consul for Sweden.
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we see the growth of global thinking
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we develop the best connections
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Manufacturing
Sector

ABEL
100% 

Clay Products, Steel,
Aluminum, PVC,
Building Products

ANSA McAL
CHEMICALS LTD

100%
Liquid Chlorine,
Caustic Soda,
Hydrochloric 

Acid and Bleach

ANSA POLYMER
100%

Flexible Plastic
Pa ckaging and Plastic

Crates

BESTCRETE
100%

Concrete Products

CARIB GLASSWORKS
100%

Glass Containers

CROWN INDUSTRIES
100%

Pa per Converters and
Manufacturers of

Envelopes and
Printing Inks

PENTA PAINTS
100%

Automotive, Industrial,
Marine and

Decorative Paints 

TRINIDAD MATCH
100%

Safety Matches

WEST INDIES GLASS
(JAMAICA) 

60%
Glass Containers

Real Estate
Sector

BAYSIDE WEST LTD
100%

Residential
Development

GRAND BAZAAR LTD
40%

Owner/Operator of
Shopping Malls

MAPLE 
DEVELOPMENT LTD

100%
Office Buildings

O MEARA HOLDINGS LTD
100%

Property Developers

PROMENADE 
DEVELOPMENT LTD

100%
Commercial District

Trade Center

ROBINSON CRUSOE LTD
100%

Luxury Resort

TRINIDAD LANDS LTD
40%

Property Lands

Brewing 
Sector

CARIB BREWERY
100%

Lager Beer, Stouts and
Shandy

CARIB BREWERY 
(ST KITTS & NEVIS) LTD

52.43%
Carib Lager Beer,

Stouts and Shandy

GRENADA
BREWERIES LTD 

55.54%
Carib Lager Beer,

Stouts and Shandy

Finance 
Sector

ANSA FINANCE &
MERCHANT BANK LTD

52%
Investment and
Merchant Bank

CONSOLIDATED
FINANCE CO LTD

(BARBADOS)
47.49%

Hire Purchase
Finance, Fixed
Deposits, Lease

Rentals

Insurance 
Sector

TATIL LIFE 
ASSURANCE LTD

99.93%
Insura n c e

Underwriters

TRINIDAD AND 
TOBAGO INSURANCE LTD

100%
Fire, Accident,

Marine, Cargo and
Health Insura n c e

Media 
Sector

TRINIDAD 
PUBLISHING 

COMPANY LTD
56.17%

Newspaper
Publishers

Radio Broadcasting
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Service 
Sector

ALSTONS SHIPPING 
100%

Shipping, Air Cargo,
Freight and

Stevedoring and
Inspection Services

ALSTONS TRAVEL LTD
100%

Tra vel Services and
Tour Operators

ALSTONS LTD
100%

Intermediate Holding
Company

ANSA Mc AL (US), INC
100%

Purchasing and
Warehouse Services,

Freight Forwarders

ANSA McAL GUYANA
LTD

100%
Holding Company

ANSA 
TECHNOLOGIES 

100%
Drilling Fluids, Tools,

Equipment & Related
Engineering Services

to the Oil Industry

Mc ENEARNEY
ALSTONS 

(BARBADOS) LTD
47.49%

Intermediate Holding
Company

McAL SERVICES LTD
(BARBADOS)

100%
Marketing and

Advertising Agency

AUTOMATIC 
CONTROLS
(1995) LTD

100%
Instrumentation and
Controls for Industrial

Plants 

ANSA Mc AL  
INTERNATIONAL

TRADING LTD
100%

Free Zone Company

Trading 
Sector

ANSA McAL TRADING
(ST LUCIA) LTD

80%
Distributor of Brewery

Products

A S BRYDEN & SONS
(BARBADOS) LTD

45.12%
Wholesale

Distribution, General
Insurance, Stationery
and Corporate Office

Supplies, Film
Processing and Sales,
Shipping and Courier

Services and Real
Estate Development

BREWERIES 
DISTRIBUTION LTD

47.49%
Distributor of Brewery

Products

DCI MIAMI, INC
100%

Distributor of Brewery
Products

STOKES & BYNOE LTD
(BARBADOS)

47.49%
Food, Liquor,

Hard ware and
Pharmaceuticals

Trading 
Sector

ALSTONS 
MARKETING 

COMPANY LTD
100%

Pharmaceuticals,
Foodstuffs, Brewery

and Household
Products

ANSA Mc AL TRADING
(GUYANA) LTD

100%
Pharmaceuticals,

Food Stuffs, Brewery
and Household

Products

HARDWARE & OIL-
FIELD EQUIPMENT CO

LTD
100%

Oilfield Equipment
and Supplies

Mc ENEARNEY 
BUSINESS 

M ACHINES
100%

Business Machines,
Office Equipment

and Supplies

STANDARD 
EQUIPMENT

100%
Pa per Products and

Suppliers
for the Printing

Industry

TOBAGO MARKETING
COMPANY LTD

100%
Brewery Products,
Pharmaceuticals,

Foodstuffs and
Household Products

Automotive 
Sector

BURMAC LTD
100%

Air Conditioning

CARMAX
100%

Pre-owned foreign
vehicles

CLASSIC MOTORS 
100%

Honda Motor
Vehicles and Service

DIAMOND MOTORS
100%

Mitsubishi Vehicles,
Industrial and
Agricultura l

Equipment and
Service

Mc ENEARNEY
M OTORS

100%
Ford  Vehicles and

Service

Mc ENEARNEY 
QUALITY, INC

47.49%
Audi, Mazda, Kia,

Diahatsu, Ford ,
Volkswagen Motor

Vehicles
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“I see opportunities for growth. ANSA McAL
allows me to be a team player. We work
together to achieve the objectives of the
Group. Our commitment to achieving
excellence is what we have in common.”
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MANUFACTURING

ABEL

ABEL once again had a positive year in 2003, regis-
tering solid growth in sales and revenues when com-
pared to the prior year.

The clay plant exceeded its annual production tar-
gets, enabling ABEL to capitalise on an upsurge in
demand for building blocks and surpass budgeted
revenue goals.

Given an optimistic outlook for the construction
sector, ABEL is actively examining its options for a
plant and technology upgrade to increase capacity,
as well as improve efficiencies and product quality.

The company continues to pursue a planned joint
venture with a major US clay manufacturer, which will
afford entry into the US market and better position
and enable the company to exploit opportunities
presented by the FTAA.

In the Metpro Division, sales in aluminum and steel
products were strong. However, export sales of uPVC
products were adversely affected by the emergence
of several other uPVC product manufacturers in the
Caribbean; this triggered deep discounting on the
local market.

uPVC sales exhibited strong growth, indicative of
the market's growing acceptance of this product as a
viable alternative to more traditional materials.

Also noteworthy is the completion of the Nicholas
Towers to the Port of Spain skyline in 2003. With this
addition to its resume, ABEL has reinforced its position
as the dominant player for the design, supply and
installation of glass curtain wall and cladding systems
in the region.

Work has also commenced on another significant
project, the skylight at West Mall, with a completion
date expected in the middle of 2004.

BESTCRETE

2003 marked a milestone year for Bestcrete, with the
commissioning of the new Besser Superpac, the
largest and most advanced block manufacturing
facility in the world. The metric block produced by this
new plant is the only one of its kind in the English-

speaking Caribbean and has been quickly accepted
by building professionals as “the block of choice in
Trinidad and Tobago.”

With this additional capacity, Bestcrete was able to
capitalise on the demand for building blocks being
driven by the Affordable Homes Program announced
by the Government. Budgeted revenue and profit tar-
gets were easily surpassed. With the continued growth
in popularity of the metric block amongst building
professionals and the upswing in the construction sec-
tor, the Superpac investment has positioned Bestcrete
for significant growth in the coming year.

ANSA McAL CHEMICALS

In 2003, ANSA McAL Chemicals Limited (AMCL)
recorded the highest sales turnover and profitability in
its history. This growth was a direct result of the diversi-
fication of its product range in the local and export
arena.

During the year, a form, fill and seal machine was
acquired to allow the company to enter the Latin
markets of Central America, as well as offering new
packaging alternatives to existing markets. This
machine is in the process of being commissioned.
Additionally, an injection-moulding machine will be
commissioned in 2004 to supply all of the company's
in-house cap requirements.

AMCL also plans to further expand its production
and warehousing facilities. Other capital initiatives are
also planned that will improve efficiencies and
reduce operating costs.

ANSA TECHNOLOGIES/HARDWARE & OILFIELD

The Company enjoyed more favourable trading con-
ditions in 2003 than it did in the previous year. This was
as a result of emphasis being placed on the acquisi-
tion of new agencies, which is expected to provide
repeat business with better margins. The company
also intends to increase business while expanding
strategically into selected areas of the energy sector.

In the Electrical and Instrumentation services area,
the company was successful in winning major bids for
the Nitrogen 2000 Plant and the Desalcott Train V
Project.

CARIB BREWERY

The brewery's two leading brands, CARIB and STAG,
grew the market during 2003.

Domestically, this growth was achieved in spite of
increasing competition from foreign beer brands and
other beverages that have been launched in the
local market. This commendable achievement
underscores management's commitment to quality,
effective marketing and competitive pricing.

Sales in the export markets have also grown in the
last year because of strategies implemented to give
Carib beer a stronger platform as the "Beer of the
Caribbean" and the continued alignment with
Caribbean carnivals and regional first class and inter-
national West Indies cricket. This growth is evident in
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both the regional and extra-regional markets.
Strategically, in order to prepare for even greater

levels of competition, the Brewery has upgraded or
overhauled major components of its plant and equip-
ment. These include expanded refrigeration capacity,
the introduction of a new process to recover carbon
dioxide and improved water treatment facilities.
These initiatives have been designed to reduce the
operating cost base of the Brewery and improve its
competitive advantage.

The Brewing Group, which comprises plants in
Trinidad, Grenada and St Kitts, is now poised to pro-
duce and market a range of brewed and non-
brewed products regionally and internationally.

Smirnoff Ice, the ready-to-drink Vodka-based bever-
age, was launched during the year to a highly recep-
tive consumer base. In fact, sales surpassed expec-
tations as the target market responded favourably to
the excitement surrounding this product. This was the
second successful product launched by the Brewery
in as many years - a credit to our commitment to
quality and service delivery. Carlsberg continues to
perform satisfactorily in domestic and export markets.

GRENADA BREWERIES

The Grenada economy grew at the rate of 3.2% in
2003 and is expected to grow by 3.8% in 2004, while
the level of inflation as measured by the Retail Price
Index is projected to be less than 2%.

A major overhaul and upgrade of the Brewhouse
and strategic changes to product processing have
resulted in improvements in the sustained consistent
quality of brewed products. This was supported by an
aggressive programme of marketing and distribution,
which resulted in increased sales and profits. The
range of products will continue to be expanded to
include related quality items for the local and export
markets.

A programme of prioritised investment in new
machinery and continuous employee training will
continue as Management initiatives focus on quality,
cost control and competitiveness.

Grenada Brewery performed in accordance with
budgeted expectations.

CARIB BREWERY (ST KITTS AND NEVIS)

The results for the year 2003 show an improvement
over the previous year. Total sales increased by 10%
over 2002, although the St Kitts and Nevis economy
showed little improvement. The increased level of
sales is directly attributable to two factors. First, the
commencement of the distribution of our products in
the St Kitts market in April 2003 and, secondly, the
introduction of three new products to the St Kitts and
Nevis markets.

Distribution of the international premium beer,
Carlsberg, began in May, 2003, and Smirnoff Ice, in
June, 2003. That month also saw the start of produc-
tion and distribution of Juicy beverages. Sales for the
five flavours of Juicy soft drinks greatly surpassed bud-
geted expectations.

In 2003, the company was able to grow its beer
market share by continuing strong promotional activ-
ities throughout the year. This is evidenced in the sup-
port the company provides to all the local communi-
ty festivals, the annual St Kitts Music Festival, Nevis
Culturama and the National Carnival.

During 2003, the company received a Certificate
of Good Manufacturing Practices and Hazard Analysis
Critical Control Point (HACCP).

This certification is for the production of fermented
alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages as well as
carbonated non-alcoholic beverages and is a strong
testament to the high quality products the brewery
can produce.

CARIB GLASSWORKS

The year 2003 was a year of rebuilding and reorgani-
sation at Carib Glassworks Limited, ensuring the com-
pany became globally competitive. The Company
completed the rebuild of Plant 3 at the end of the
third quarter. This introduced the new Triple Gob tech-
nology into the Company's manufacturing process.
The project was completed within budget and the
new plant became operational by the end of the
year.

With the introduction of this new technology, a high-
er skill level amongst the employees was required.
Consistent with this requirement, the Company invest-
ed heavily in technical training throughout the year
with the assistance of a glass plant expert from
Germany. The process of training will continue into
2004 and the company expects to reap significant
benefits as the new financial year unfolds.

The light-weighting initiative that commenced in
2002 was continued in 2003, as the company con-
tinued to reduce bottle weights for major customers.
This programme will continue into 2004 and further
improvements are anticipated.

Despite the challenges of 2003 and the ever-
increasing competition, Carib Glassworks once again
emerged as a major player in the glass making indus-
try in the region. The company will be focusing on
regaining lost business and ensuring high quality stan-
dards and customer satisfaction. In keeping with the
strategic objective of reducing the production cost
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per tonne, the company will be seeking further
improvement opportunities to increase plant efficien-
cy and productivity.

ANSA POLYMER

For 2003 the Film Division grew by 4%. Sales in the
plain film categories declined marginally as a result of
intense competition in these low margin segments.
However, this occurred against the backdrop of a 9%
increase in sales of printed film.

Two new bag machines were installed in early June
and will soon bring online the capacity to produce a
wider variety of products at a consistently high quality.
The outlook for the business continues to be optimistic
in the face of the challenges of FTAA and the oppor-
tunities created by CSME.

2004 will be a year of dramatic change for ANSA
Polymer. The arrival of a new six-colour Press, garbage
bag-on-roll machine and stand-up zip-locked pouch
machine will provide strong avenues for growth in film.

TRINIDAD MATCH

Trinidad Match maintained its leadership position in
the Caricom region, showing substantial growth in St
Lucia where its brands are already market leaders.
Development of extra regional sales was continued.
Growth in Haiti was slower than expected as the
social/political unrest intensified towards the end of
the year.

In preparation for the FTAA, the company
embarked on a number of initiatives, one being the
acquisition of a new state-of-the-art match line. This
line will enable the company to further improve the
quality of its finished product and will ensure that
Trinidad Match has the production capacity to meet
the demands of extra regional growth.

New alliances were strengthened and the
company has been successful in sourcing high qual-
ity raw materials at very affordable prices, which, cou-
pled with the capacity of our new line, will enable
Trinidad Match to target new export markets.

2004 promises to be a very successful year for the
company.

PENTA PAINTS

Penta Paints recorded continued growth in the key
sectors that drive the majority of its sales turnover.
These are the architectural and trade division and the
automotive refinish division.

At the high end of the market, the Custom Colour
(Glidden) sub-sector grew by 19%. Penta is commit-
ted to this market segment and will embark on a
number of initiatives to better service these cus-
tomers.

Regionally, trading conditions in the architectural
and trade division paralleled those existing in Trinidad,
the highlight being our Guyana operation, which after
a difficult start, has begun to show impressive returns.

Sales to Jamaica have also recommenced after a
period of 9 years. The company expects significant
growth in this market in 2004.

AUTOMOTIVE

CLASSIC MOTORS

This is the fifth straight year of growth in profit as the
company again surpassed its budget for 2003.

The automotive market experienced a return to
growth in 2003 and all expectations are that in 2004
there will be even further growth of 15%. The compa-
ny approaches this year with optimism, as all the
Honda models will experience model upgrades and
style enhancements.

Across the Automotive Sector, the ANSA McAL
Group has launched an exciting and unique
approach to the auto acquisition experience - 'In
One'. Finance, Insurance and Service are now com-
bined and tailored to the unique and specific needs
of individual consumers who have the opportunity to
pay one monthly installment for the three, throughout
the term of the loan agreement.

The market has responded very favourably and this
augurs well for 2004.

DIAMOND MOTORS

In 2003 Diamond Motors showed a significant
increase in profitability over the previous year. Our
theme - "Total Automotive Experience" was imple-
mented for the year 2003 and beyond, which, in prin-
ciple, is a renewed emphasis in the way we conduct
business with our customers and clients.

For the past 18 months, we have been laying the
groundwork for a new approach through a number of
initiatives, all geared toward one objective: providing
our customers with more efficient and convenient
products and services.

It is our intention and desire to ensure that once a
customer visits our showroom that his experience
through the entire organisation will be fulfilling and
rewarding.

McENEARNEY MOTORS

In last year's annual report, the company committed
to a 30% growth in profits for 2003. The objectives
were easily surpassed in 2003 as customers
embraced the exciting range of models offered by
Ford.

Equally important, further reorganisation of the
company took place in 2003 with an injection of new
systems, human capital and a rationalisation of the
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model line-up. This produced tremendous results in
the second half of the year.

As the company continues this exercise, it remains
committed to its objective stated in last year's report
that the Ford brand will be among the top three sup-
pliers measured by sales value within two years.

We are particularly excited about McEnearney
Motors' future. The international product range of Ford
is breathtaking and among the best known through-
out the world, and we see new and very exciting
models strengthening our position as we grow locally.

McENEARNEY QUALITY INC

Turnover increased by 21%, mainly due to a signifi-
cant increase in vehicle sales. Our optimistic outlook
that the new vehicle market would continue to recov-
er in 2003 materialised as vehicle sales grew by 20%
and all departments, including after sales and parts,
benefited from this trend and recorded substantial
growth.

Our restructuring program intensified in 2003. The
company's skilled and efficient personnel are under-
going continuous training specifically focused on
meeting the needs and expectations of our cus-
tomers by providing the highest level of quality serv-
ice. This clearly defined strategy has impacted posi-
tively on its 2003 results with significant improvement
in net earnings.

BURMAC

Burmac Machinery recorded its
best ever trading result in 2003.

The Division is well known for its
supply of competitively priced
premium brand products such
as Yale Forklifts, New Holland
Tractors and Heavy Construction
Equipment, and Wacker Light
Construction Equipment.

Market share was increased
in all lines and the highest num-
ber of unit sales of new tractors, backhoes and forklifts
were recorded in 2003.

Improved performance is envisaged for 2004 with
continued emphasis on customer satisfaction and
market share.

BURMAC Air Conditioning

Burmac Air Conditioning received a second place
award from Carrier for our region from among territo-
ries including Central America and South America.
Sales increased over last year by 65% as a result of a
revamped marketing approach.

Some major projects were undertaken such as West
Mall and the National Gas Company's Poui and Teak
platforms. In the latter area, the company, in addition
to supplying explosion-proof air conditioning units,
also designed, constructed and installed the ducting
for these platforms. Another successful project of note
was that for Unit Trust in Tobago.

DISTRIBUTION

ALSTONS MARKETING (AMCO)

AMCO continues to be the leading distributor in the
Trinidad market with continued growth year on year. Its
four divisions: consumer products, wines & spirits,
pharmaceuticals & cosmetics, and the biomedical
division all contributed to its success by building and
supporting market leader brands and strong value
brand relationships with customers and consumers.

Four factors contributed to AMCO's market leader-
ship position: First, a continued focus on distribution
servicing all channels. Second, a continued heavy
investment in advertising, promotions, and brand
building. Third, a constant review of its operations in
order to improve both support and service to its cus-
tomers. Fourth, the continued investment in upgrad-
ing of information technology systems in order to pro-
vide valuable management information for both the
benefit of its customers and principals.

In order to increase volumes beyond its current
organic growth of 7% per annum, AMCO continues to
introduce new products. In 2003 several new prod-
ucts were launched, including Rindex Laundry
Detergent from Procter & Gamble, Mistic Juices from
Cadbury, Aha Dish Washing Liquid from ANSA McAL
Chemicals, Marlboro Cigarettes from Philip Morris,
Cadbury Biscuits, and Bonlé Evaporated Milk.

ANSA McAL TRADING (GUYANA)

ANSA McAL Trading has had a successful year in what
continues to be a challenging market place. The
sales of the Dry Goods Division held market share, in
spite of the tough economic climate. The company
has introduced new products in order to deepen its
portfolio and take advantage of the niche market
opportunities.

The company is confident that it will see growth in
all divisions in 2004. Brewery products continued to
perform extremely well and gain the support of
Guyanese consumers, as a result of consistent quality
and reliability of supply. The Pharmaceutical Division
was rationalised in 2003 to bring focus to key portfolio
lines of Insulin and Vaccines and prominent OTC
brands.

ANSA McAL TRADING (ST LUCIA)

ANSA McAL Trading (St Lucia) is the first Group
Company to be established in St Lucia and began
trading in August 2003.

In a four-month period the company has made a
significant impact in the market, tackling its competi-
tors on a "one on one" basis, resulting in a steep
increase in sales volumes of our flagship brand, Carib
Beer.

The company's initial focus is the Carib Brewery
brand portfolio with plans to broaden its distributorship
into other Group products.

In addition, the company is fast becoming one of
the major sponsors of key consumption events in St
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Lucia. In 2004 it aims to achieve continued growth
as well as an increase in its market share for the
company's portfolio.

McENEARNEY BUSINESS MACHINES (MBM) 
STANDARD EQUIPMENT 
CROWN INDUSTRIES

The year 2003 was another successful one for MBM as
the company's profit before tax increased by 41%
over the previous year.

The company continued its dominance in the pho-
tocopier market with its leading Canon brand and
was able to maintain a high level of retention of its key
accounts during the year.

As planned, its security lines grew substantially over
the previous year and with the acquisition of
Sensormatic by TYCO, MBM will now have access to
an even wider array of quality brands such as
American Dynamics, ADT, and Kantech.

Early in the year, a decision was taken to consoli-
date the operations of Standard Equipment into
MBM's Head Office in Port of Spain. Standard
Equipment markets and distributes equipment,
accessories and paper consumables to the printing
industry that are complementary to MBM's existing
business lines and customer base. Crown Industries
manufactures envelopes and cut-paper products
and will continue to be the production arm of a com-
bined operation. These changes are expected to
bring about improved operational efficiencies and
increased shareholder value in the coming year.

TOBAGO MARKETING (TOMCO)

Tobago Marketing acts as a Corporate Office in
Tobago and as a Group facilitator offering warehous-
ing and administrative services to Group subsidiaries.
Presently, the following Group Companies enjoy the
use of TOMCO facilities: Carib Brewery Limited, Alstons
Marketing Company Limited, ABEL, Bestcrete, Penta
Paints, ANSA McAL Chemicals, Burmac Limited,
McEnearney Business Machines and Standard
Distributors Limited.

TOMCO's income and expenditures were in line with
expectations and, in reality, the company performed
satisfactorily for the 12-month period ending
December 31, 2003.

STOKES & BYNOE - BARBADOS

The company reported further growth in turnover and
profit in 2003.

A new company, Breweries Distribution Ltd (BDL),
was formed to merge the marketing and distribution
of brewery products from the three Carib Breweries in
the region. As a result, both Stokes & Bynoe and BDL
now have a sharper focus in their respective core
business.

A wide range of marketing and distribution initiatives
implemented by the pharmaceutical, consumer and
wine and spirits divisions resulted in positive improve-
ment in sales and gross profit performance. The com-

pany successfully launched a number of new and
innovative products to customer groups, including the
retail and tourist sectors.

The company continues to enjoy increased busi-
ness from the opening of new stores in the urban and
rural areas and in particular from Trimart Inc.

FINANCIAL SERVICES

ANSA FINANCE AND MERCHANT BANK

The Bank completed yet another successful year,
having posted profits after taxation of $30.3M with an
EPS of $0.98 per stock unit. This represents an increase
of 43% over the prior year.

Total assets and shareholders funds have grown by
24% and 17% over the prior year, closing the year at
$981 million and $134 million respectively.

Throughout 2003 the Bank continued to see high
levels of liquidity and falling interest rates with
unfavourable effects on income levels. Despite these
challenges, the Bank was again able to successfully
manage its interest rate risk, which is evident in the
improvements in net interest income of over 25%,
doubling the performance of the previous year.
Revenues from non-interest income sources grew by
an impressive 80%, the rewards of conscious efforts
made by the company in controlling its operational
risks by diversifying from traditional product lines.

During 2003 the asset financing division focused its
attention on product development and product
enhancements, offering to the market products tai-
lored to meet customers' needs and an "In-one" pro-
gramme unique to the ANSA McAL Group of
Companies. This emphasized the Bank's efforts to
continue to be the market leader in this field.

Despite increasing capital market competitiveness
from both regional and international players, the
Merchant Banking Division has had continued suc-
cess as the division underwrote and participated in
regional & local capital market issues of over TTD
$800 million.

The Bank's Board and Management have set some
aggressive targets for 2004 and, with closer coopera-
tion with the Tatil Companies, are well positioned for
the Groups' 2006 objectives.

THE TATIL GROUP
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The Tatil Group achieved another record year of prof-
itability while maintaining outstanding financial ratios
at local industry and regional levels. Equally gratifying
was the strong human resource and operational plat-
form on which to build in the foreseeable future.

The above was achieved despite challenging rein-
surance conditions, client pressure on domestic rates
and the growing resurgence of the facultative market.

The domestic and regional insurance market con-
tinued to be characterised by a reduction in the num-
ber of players through acquisitions and consolidations
and now consists mostly of large companies, some
smaller niche players, and almost no mid-sized com-
panies.

Consistent with the Group's corporate plan, the Tatil
Group moved aggressively to enhance customer
service through the implementation of a 'Customer
Relationship Management' pilot project. This was suc-
cessfully completed. It has provided a platform for
continued organic growth, retention and sourcing of
profitable quality accounts that contribute to overall
growth objectives while laying a platform for service
excellence. This project will be rolled out Group-wide.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCE (CFC) - BARBADOS

2003 was a record year as gross income and net
earnings grew significantly. It was also a very exciting
year as the company continued to progress with the
diversification of its financial service products.
Substantial income streams from new products were
recorded.

CFC benefited from an increased demand for
vehicle financing as the new vehicle market grew by
20%. CFC also managed to increase its market share
in what has become an intensely competitive market.

CFC also benefited from excess liquidity in the sys-
tem as lower interest rates reduced the company's
weighted average cost of funds.

CFC has set itself ambitious targets to improve its
position as the dominant non-bank financial institution
in Barbados. The company expects to be challenged
in 2004 with the entry of new local and foreign entities
into the market but remains confident that the experi-
ence and tenacity of the CFC team will succeed in
the execution of its strategic plans and overall finan-
cial objectives.

SERVICES
ANSA McAL (US) INC

In 2003 ANSA McAL (US) Inc again achieved record
results since commencing operations in November,
1992.

All indications point to another successful year in
2004. In November the company entered into a new
phase of operation when it purchased and occupied
a property of 17,000 square feet located at 11403
NW 39th Street, Miami, Florida 33178. It consists of
5,000 square feet of office and 12,000 square feet of
warehouse, and is strategically and conveniently
located within eight miles of the Miami International
Airport.

As a result, for the first time since the company's
inception it will have its own warehouse facilities. This
has enabled ANSA McAL (US) to enter into the activi-
ties of receiving cargo, loading and shipping of its
own containers on a regular basis, as well as airfreight
consolidations. The company continues to provide
freight forwarding services for Group Companies.

During the month of September, 2003, a seminar
referred to as 'Building the Effective Team and
Strategic Positioning Exercise' was held for the entire
team in order to comply with the Group's program for
doubling profits by 2006.

It is expected that by mid-year all Purchasing
Agents would have acquired at least their 'Accredited
Purchasing Practitioner' certification from The Institute
of Supply Management. This will enhance the team's
professional knowledge and negotiating skills, and
enable the company to continue being on the cut-
ting edge of the Group's target to reduce supply cost
by 5 to 10% per year.

ALSTONS SHIPPING SGS TRINIDAD

Alstons Shipping Limited, one of the leading ship-
ping agencies in the region, will be celebrating its
centenary in 2005. It represents major lines such as
Hapag-Lloyd, Hamburg-Sud, Bernuth Lines and the
car carrier services of the Kawasaki Kaisen Kaishen
Line. It also represents Panalpina Inc, one of the
world's leading freight and logistics management
companies.

The company operates from offices in Port of Spain
and San Fernando with a recently opened station in
Point Fortin to service Atlantic LNG.

Following a restructuring of the shipping operations,
benefiting from sound management and market
knowledge, ASL was able to deliver record results for
the Group. Negotiations with the lines resulted in
increased vessel calls and transshipment business.
This accounted for the majority of the company's
income growth in 2003.

Rate structures continue to be depressed in the
region with a highly competitive environment
demanding the use of available technology to con-
trol costs and deliver consistent service to our cus-
tomers.

Another key activity of the company is its depart-
ment, SGS Trinidad, an operation based in San
Fernando, dedicated to inspection and tank calibra-
tion services in the Energy Sector. This department has
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grown substantially in 2003 and is poised for even
greater growth in 2004.

SGS Trinidad is ISO 9001/2000 certified and contin-
ues to impress its client base through continuous train-
ing and customer-care programs.

Continued diversification of the shipping and SGS
Trinidad operations will be the key to continued suc-
cess in the coming year. While the company exceed-
ed its budget for 2003, focus on supply side and logis-
tics management in shipping and new competen-
cies in cargo inspection outside of the traditional
energy sector are key elements of the corporate
strategic plan for 2004 and beyond.

ALSTONS TRAVEL

2003 was another successful and profitable year
for Alstons Travel. This was achieved by the company's
ability to reduce expenses and maintain its share of
the market by improving third part sales, tour sales
and scheduled carrier business along with the effec-
tive implementation of service fees that came into
effect during the second quarter of the year.

The Travel industry remains very competitive and
Alstons Travel continues to place emphasis on provid-
ing both the ultimate in first class service and value
added programs to our customers.

For 2003 a new General Manager was appointed
who, with the teams is extremely excited about future
prospects for the company.

DCI MIAMI INC

DCI Miami Inc continues to market Carib products
in the United States successfully.

Markets for Carib products in the Northeast United
States continue to grow, especially the New York area
where sales have increased each year. Management
is actively considering extending into the other states
that have large beer markets.

McAL SERVICES - BARBADOS

Yet another good year was recorded by McAL
Services in 2003, and with the economy also showing
some robust signs during the year, group companies
forged ahead with implementing plans which focus
on integrating their products and services to meet a
more demanding consumer in this era of globalisa-
tion. This forward thinking becomes even more critical
in light of the Caribbean Single Market and Economy
(CSME) and the Free Trade Area of the Americas
(FTAA) taking greater shape for implementation in the
immediate future.

Equally important, the Group sought to expand its
Caribbean footprint via the acquisition of the Brydens
Group. This acquisition will provide marketing syner-
gies, operational efficiencies and competitive
advantage whilst providing a platform for enhanced
customer service. Brydens is a well-known brand on
the Barbadian and Caribbean landscape and will
redefine the role of McAL Services as it offers mer-
chandising, brand activation and trade marketing

services to the expanded Brydens McAL distribution
network across the region.

MEDIA

TRINIDAD PUBLISHING COMPANY (PRINT AND RADIO)

2003 was a critical year for the Company.  Two major
decisions were taken within three (3) months. The 85
year old Broadsheet Guardian was changed to a new
smaller size (G-Size) in November, 2002, and the one
(1) year old WIRE was closed in February, 2003.

Both have proved to be good business decisions,
as the G-Size Guardian made a favourable impact
on both readers and advertisers and the resources of
the WIRE were incorporated into the Guardian to
strengthen the operations, and improve its competi-
tiveness.

The success of the G-Size was manifested in higher
circulation, higher sales income, a new cadre of
young readers, and a new 'contemporary' image for
the paper.

Significant improvements were also made to repro-
ductive quality, distribution, and press performance.

The company's radio operations continued to
maintain the position as the No. 1 Radio network
based on audience ratings.

All of the "on air" studios are now fully automated,
offering a full spectrum of hit music suitable for satis-
fying all music tastes.

PROPERTIES

TRINIDAD LANDS - GRAND BAZAAR

Demand for commercial space at the City of Grand
Bazaar continued to be high during the year. This
trend is expected to continue throughout 2004 as the
improved security arrangements instituted in 2003
impacted positively on the tenants, as well as on
shoppers visiting the Bazaar.

The large number of stores and businesses operat-
ing at the Grand Bazaar and the wide variety of the
goods and services available ensure that its reputa-
tion as the region's largest outdoor shopping complex
is well deserved.

ROBINSON CRUSOE - 
CLUB PIGEON POINT, TOBAGO (CPP)

CPP continues to regularly entertain parties of cruise
ship passengers from around the world, as well as

servicing a daily supply
of paying guests.

The company greets
the cruise ship visitors
with traditional rum
punch and the
Caribbean sounds of
calypso, with a local
steel band. First impres-
sions are vital for the
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best word-of-mouth advertising. The Blue Marlin Bar
provides a delightful ambience to sit and talk or
watch sports events from a large screen television.

Sir Richard Branson was entertained at CPP to cele-
brate the inaugural flight of Virgin Airline Service to
Tobago. He remarked that Club Pigeon Point is an
absolute gem that he had not realised existed. The

potential for late evening/night dining is not yet being
utilised in the Deck Restaurant, but it would be difficult
to find a more picturesque spot, in the whole of the
Caribbean, for fine dining. No other area in Tobago
can offer so much to so many.

CPP continues to be the preferred beach destina-
tion in Tobago for both local and foreign visitors alike.
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“I see the best offered to me, affording me
choice in what I use for my family. My confi-
dence in their quality has lasted through the
years. ANSA McAL gives me what I want at
prices I can afford.”



2 72 7
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($000’s) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Restated

Sales to third parties 2,417,307 2,246,089 2,127,209 2,210,604 1,883,532

Profit before taxation 382,355 323,482 324,076 259,080 261,157

Income attributable to shareholders 243,182 203,824 181,259 152,611 132,434

Share units in issue (weighted 
average – net of treasury shares) 168,604 164,735 164,158 163,748 163,771

Earnings per stock unit – basic $1.44 $1.24 $1.10 $0.93 $0.81

Dividends: Amount Per unit: 110,593 102,602 98,495 90,061 90,084

Interim $0.25 $0.25 $0.25 $0.20 $0.22
Final $0.40 $0.37 $0.35 $0.35 $0.33

Total $0.65 $0.62 $0.60 $0.55 $0.55

Times covered 2.20 1.99 1.84 1.69 1.47

Shareholders’ equity per stock unit $8.57 $7.13 $6.09 $5.38 $4.58

Shareholders’ equity $1,445,771 $1,173,992 $999,884 $881,769 $749,488

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: 1999–2003 
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REPORT OF AUDITORS
REPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF ANSA McAL LIMITED

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of ANSA McAL Limited and its subsidiaries (the

Group) as at December 31, 2003, and the consolidated income statement and consolidated

statements of changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, as set out on

pages 30 to 56. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s management. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a

reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of the Group as at December 31, 2003, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for

the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Port of Spain

TRINIDAD

February 27, 2004
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December 31
Notes 2003 2002

($000’s) ($000’s)
Assets
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 1,018,508 935,051
Investment properties 4 60,864 54,133
Goodwill 6 1,134 2,304
Investment in associated company 45,974 42,215
Held to maturity investments 7 272,197 279,931
Available for sale investments 7 504,394 203,365
Loans and interest receivable 8 1,016,002 914,346
Deferred tax asset 20 34,156 14,967
Employee benefit asset 15 123,287 63,660

3,076,516 2,509,972
Current assets

Inventories 9 512,513 462,750
Trade and other receivables 10 449,880 468,047
Held for trading investments 7 189,389 211,680
Loans and interest receivable 8 162,411 135,369
Cash and bank balances 5 491,674 526,103

1,805,867 1,803,949

TOTAL ASSETS 4,882,383 4,313,921

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2003
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEE T
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2003  (cont’d)

Notes 2003 2002
($000’s) ($000’s)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Stated capital 16 146,342 146,342

Capital reserves 430,289 296,425

Treasury shares at cost (8,373) (9,889)

Revenue reserves 877,513 741,114

Shareholders’ equity 1,445,771 1,173,992

Minority interests 326,353 290,845

1,772,124 1,464,837

Non-current liabilities

Medium and long term debt 12 12,406 17,206

Amounts due to depositors 13 221,347 108,505

Bonds payable 14 783,546 782,892

Employee benefit liability 15 28,354 26,514

Deferred tax liability 20 158,627 130,825

Insurance funds 553,124 554,098

1,757,404 1,620,040

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 11 734,355 609,276

Short term borrowings 12 21,743 24,405

Amounts due to depositors 13 552,251 576,860

Taxation payable 44,506 18,503

1,352,855 1,229,044

Total Liabilities 3,110,259 2,849,084

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4,882,383 4,313,921

A NORMAN SABGA: Chairman ANTHONY N SABGA: Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

December 31
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

Year Ended 
December 31

Notes 2003 2002
($000’s) ($000’s)

Revenue 2,417,307 2,246,089

Operating Profit 17 480,871 429,967

Finance cost (net) (103,523) (106,796)

Share of results of associated company                         5,007 3,578

Profit before taxation and appropriation 382,355 326,749

Contribution to The ANSA McAL  Foundation 18 – (3,267)

Profit before taxation 382,355 323,482

Taxation 19 (85,639) (80,012)

Profit after taxation 296,716 243,470

Minority interests (53,534) (39,646)

Profit attributable to shareholders 243,182 203,824

Basic earnings per share 23 $1.44 $1.24

Fully diluted earnings per share 23 $1.43 $1.23

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Stated Capital      Treasury   Revenue
Capital Reserves        Shares   Reserves Total
($000’s) ($000’s)      ($000’s)     ($000’s) ($000’s)

Year Ended December 31, 2003

Balance at January 1, 2003 146,342 296,425 (9,889) 741,114 1,173,992 

Unrealised gain on available for sale securities – 56,546 – – 56,546

Foreign currency differences – 3,051 – – 3,051

Profit attributable to shareholders – – – 243,182 243,182

Dividends (Note 21) – – – (104,011) (104,011)

Transferred from revenue reserves – 2,772 – – 2,772

Transferred to capital reserves – – – (2,772) (2,772)

Gain on disposal of treasury shares – 71,388 – – 71,388

Sale of treasury shares – – 1,516 – 1,516

Other reserve movements – 107 – – 107

Balance at December 31, 2003 146,342 430,289 (8,373) 877,513 1,445,771

Year Ended December 31, 2002

Balance at January 1, 2002 146,342 229,847 (14,275) 637,970 999,884

Unrealised gain on available for sale securities – 29,205 – – 29,205

Other revaluation adjustments – 1,589 – – 1,589

Foreign currency differences – 8,239 – – 8,239

Profit attributable to shareholders – – – 203,824 203,824

Dividends (Note 21) – – – (98,544) (98,544)

Transferred from revenue reserves – 2,136 – – 2,136

Transferred to capital reserves – – – (2,136) (2,136)

Gain on disposal of treasury shares – 25,409 – – 25,409

Sale of treasury shares – – 4,386 – 4,386

Balance at December 31, 2002 146,342 296,425 (9,889) 741,114 1,173,992 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

CO N SOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
S

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

2003 2002
($000’s) ($000’s)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 382,355 323,482
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation 116,176 110,654
Amortisation of goodwill 1,170 1,836
Gain on disposal of property, plant, equipment and 
revaluation of investments (6,263) (3,179)
Foreign currency losses 1,898 910
Unrealised gain on revaluation of trading investments (1,177) (1,688)
Share of results of associated company (5,007) (3,578)
Movement in employee benefit obligations (net) (57,787) (14,391)
Finance costs (net) 103,523 106,796
(Decrease)/increase in insurance funds (974) 48,484

Operating profit before working capital changes 533,914 569,326
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (49,763) 32,952
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 18,167 (84,309)
Increase in trade and other payables 125,079 132,049

Cash generated from operations 627,397 650,018
Finance cost (net) (103,523) (106,796)
Taxation paid (67,171) (93,755)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 456,703 449,467

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, equipment and 
investment properties 31,827 26,207
Purchase of property, plant, equipment and investment properties (236,812) (199,221)
Acquisition of subsidiary net of cash acquired   – (23,737)
Proceeds from sale of investments  262,022 222,210
Purchase of investments (382,632) (202,437)
Increase in loans and interest receivable (128,698) (57,395)

Net cash outflow from investing activities (454,293) (234,373)

Cash flows from financing activities
(Decrease)/increase in medium and long term debt 
and bonds payable (2,595) 20,178
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to depositors 88,233 (95,996)
Dividends paid to minorities and preference shareholders (14,265) (16,408)
Dividends paid to stockholders (104,001) (98,534)

Net cash outflow  from financing activities (32,628) (190,760)

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (30,218) 24,334
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 520,988 496,654

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 5) 490,770 520,988

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Year Ended December 31
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1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

ANSA McAL Limited (the Company), incorporated in the Republic of Trinidad and Tobago, is the
Parent Company of a diversified group of companies engaged in trading, manufacturing, finance,
insurance and service industries.  The Group (ANSA McAL Limited and Consolidated Subsidiaries)
operates in Trinidad and Tobago, the wider Caribbean region and the United States of America.

The Company is a limited liability company with its registered office located at 11 Maraval Road, Port
of Spain, Trinidad, West Indies.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on February 27, 2004.

The Group employed 4,735 employees as of December 31, 2003 (2002: 4,696).

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below:

a. Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements are expressed in Trinidad and Tobago dollars and have
been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement at fair value of certain
property, plant, equipment, trading and available for sale financial assets.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

b. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimated.

c. Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of ANSA McAL Limited
(the Company) and its controlled subsidiaries, after the elimination of all material inter-company
transactions. Control is achieved where the Parent Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an investee so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date the Parent Company obtains control until such time
as control ceases. Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. Adjustments are made to
conform any dissimilar material accounting policies that may exist.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 
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c. Principles of consolidation (continued)

Minority interests represent the interest not held by the Company, in ANSA Finance & Merchant
Bank Limited, Trinidad Publishing Company Limited, Caribbean Development Company
Limited, West Indies Glass Limited, Carib Brewery (St Kitts & Nevis) Limited, McEnearney Alstons
(Barbados) Limited, Grenada Breweries Limited and ANSA McAL (St Lucia) Limited.

d. Investment in associated company 

The Group's investment in the associate, over which the Company has significant influence, is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting. It is carried in the balance sheet at the
lower of the equity-accounted amount and the recoverable amount. The pro-rata share of the
associate's results is recognised in the income statement. The Company's investment in the
associate consists of a 40% ownership interest in Trinidad Lands Limited.

e. Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair value of the Group's
share of the identifiable net assets of the acquired subsidiary or associated undertaking, at the
date of acquisition. Goodwill is reported in the balance sheet as an asset and is amortised
using the straight line method over a five year period in which benefits are expected to be
received. 

f. Loans and interest receivable

Loans and interest receivable are stated at principal outstanding, net of unearned interest and
specific allowances for non-performing loans.  Non-performing loans are amounts for which
interest no longer continues to be accrued and taken into income on an ongoing basis
because there is doubt as to the recoverability of the advances.  Income from non-performing
advances is taken into income on a cash basis but only after prior specific provisions for losses
have been recovered.

For non-performing loans, specific provisions are made for the unsecured portion of the loan.
The amount of the provision is dependent upon the extent of delinquency of the advances.

Amounts due from customers under hire purchase and finance lease agreements are
recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group’s investment in these arrangements.

g. Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions 

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Trinidad
and Tobago dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.  Non-monetary
assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rates that existed when the values were
determined. Exchange differences on foreign currency transactions are recognised in the
income statement.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003  (cont’d)
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g. Foreign currency translation (continued)

Foreign entities

On consolidation, assets and liabilities of foreign entities are translated into Trinidad and Tobago
dollars at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and unrealised gains and
losses thus arising are dealt with through the reserves.

h. Property, plant and equipment

Land and building held for use in the production or supply of goods and services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet either at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, or at independent professional valuation.
Property values are subject to annual management reviews. Professional valuations are
conducted when these reviews indicate a potentially significant variation from recorded values.

The freehold buildings of non-manufacturing companies are depreciated on the straight line
basis at 2% per annum. Depreciation on the freehold buildings of the major manufacturing
subsidiaries is charged on the straight line basis at rates varying between 2% and 5%.
Leasehold properties are amortised over the lives of the leases. Land and capital work in
progress are not depreciated.

Depreciation is provided on plant and other assets, either on the straight line or reducing
balance basis, at rates varying between 5% and 331/3% which are considered sufficient to
write off the assets over their estimated useful lives.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. Repairs and
renewal costs are expensed as incurred.

i. Investment properties

Investment properties principally comprise office buildings and land not occupied by the
Group, which is held for long term rental yields and capital appreciation. Investment properties
are classified as long term investments and carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Buildings are depreciated on a straight line basis at a rate
of 2% per annum. Land is not depreciated.  

j. Investments

All investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given
and including the acquisition charges associated with the investment. After initial recognition,
investments, which are classified as held for trading and available for sale, are measured at fair
value. All purchases and sales of "regular way" investments are recognised on the trade date,
which is the date the group committed to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are classified
into trading, available for sale and held to maturity classifications.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003  (cont’d)
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j. Investments (continued)

Trading

Securities purchased for trading and as underlying investments for funding projects are stated
at fair value based on quoted market prices where available.  When market quotations are
not readily available, fair values are based on discounted cash flows or are estimated using
quoted market prices of similar investments.  Estimates based on discounted cash flows may
not be indicative of amounts realisable in an immediate sale of the securities.  In addition, the
calculation of estimated fair value is based on market conditions at a specific point in time
and may not be reflective of future fair values.  All gains and losses realised and unrealised
from these securities are reported in the income statement.

Available for sale

These are securities which are not held with the intention of generating profits from market
movements and the general purpose is to hold these securities for an indefinite period.  The
securities may be sold if there are significant changes in market conditions, liquidity
requirements, changes in funding sources and terms and changes in foreign currency risk.
These securities are revalued to closing market quotations.  All unrealised gains and losses on
revaluation are reported as part of shareholders' equity in the capital reserve account until the
securities are disposed of, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is included in the income statement.

Held to maturity

Investments in which management has the intent and ability to hold to the fixed maturity date
are classified as held to maturity and included in non-current assets.  These investments are
carried at amortised cost.

k. Inventories 

Inventories and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is arrived at on the first-in first-out or at the average method, including, in the case of
manufacturing subsidiaries, a proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

l. Insurance funds

As part of the insurance subsidiaries’ normal operations, funds are required to be set up for
both statutory and actuarial reasons and maintained to adequately safeguard the
policyholders’ interests. These funds are shown separately from the funds attributable to the
stockholders and are not available for distribution. The long term insurance funds under
insurance policies of Tatil Life Assurance Limited are valued annually by a qualified actuary.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003  (cont’d)



3 9

m. Income taxes

The charge for the current year is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which
are non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using the applicable tax rates for the period.

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate
that is expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled based
on the enacted tax rate at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

n. Employee benefits

The Group operates a number of defined benefit plans, the assets of which are generally held
in separate trustee-administered funds. The pension plans are generally funded by payments
from employees and by the relevant Group companies, taking account of the
recommendations of independent, qualified actuaries.

The pension accounting costs for the plans are assessed using the projected unit credit
method. Under this method the cost of providing pensions is charged to the income
statement so as to spread the regular cost over the service lives of the employees in
accordance with the advice of qualified actuaries who carry out a full valuation of the plans
every three years.

The Group also provides post-retirement health benefits to their retirees. The entitlement to
these benefits is based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the
completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued
over the period of employment, using an accounting methodology similar to that for the
defined benefit plans.

Actuarial gains and losses are amortised over the expected average remaining working lives
of the participating employees. 

o. Revenue recognition

The Group principally derives its revenue from sales to third parties, rendering of services,
interest income, premium income and rental income. 

Sales to third parties

Revenue from the sale of products to third parties is recognised on the transfer of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time of delivery.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003  (cont’d)
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o. Revenue recognition (continued)

Rendering of services

Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion. Where the contract outcome
cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses
recognised that are recoverable.

Interest income

Income from finance leases, hire purchases and premium financing is calculated on the sum
of the digits method. Income from other loans is recognised on an amortised basis. Interest is
accounted for on the accruals basis except where a loan becomes contractually three
months in arrears, in which case the interest is suspended and then accounted for on a cash
basis until the loan is brought up to date.

Other interest income is recognised as the interest accrues, unless collectibility is in doubt.

Premium income

Premium income is accounted for when invoiced, which corresponds to the date insurance
cover becomes effective. Any subsequent revisions are accounted for in the year during which
these occur.

Rental income

Rental income arising on investment properties is accounted for on a straight line basis over
the lease term.

p. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have 30-90 day terms, are recognised and carried at
original invoice amounts less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts. An estimate for
doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts
are written-off as incurred.

q. Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable, which are normally settled on 30-90 day terms,
are carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods
and services received, whether or not billed to the Group.

r. Bonds payable and other interest bearing debt

Bonds payable and interest bearing debt are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value
of the consideration received, net of transaction costs incurred. After initial recognition, these
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any transaction cost, discount or
premium on issue. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003  (cont’d)
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s. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event where it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

t. Stated capital

Ordinary stated capital is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received by the
Company. As equity is repurchased, the amount of consideration paid is recognised as a
charge to equity and reported in the balance sheet as treasury shares.

u. Borrowing costs

Interest costs on borrowings are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

v. Comparative information

Where necessary, comparative data has been restated to conform with changes in
presentation in the current year. These changes have no effect on the reported profit
attributable to shareholders in the current or previous year.

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land & Land &
Buildings Buildings Other Capital
Freehold Leasehold Plant Assets W.I.P. Total
($000’s) ($000’s) ($000’s) ($000’s) ($000’s) ($000’s)

Gross carrying amounts, 
December 31, 2002 441,661 44,175 721,604 379,036 88,893 1,675,369

Additions 25,470 1,859 117,299 84,717 – 229,345
Disposals, write downs and 

other movements 8,944 (7,749) 61,508 (52,483) (88,893) (78,673)
Gross carrying amounts, 

December 31, 2003 476,075 38,285 900,411 411,270 – 1,826,041

Accumulated depreciation, 
December 31, 2002 70,497  4,645 448,098 217,078 – 740,318

Depreciation for 2003 7,000 680 53,755 54,005 – 115,440
Disposals, write downs and 

other movements 1,253 547 (21,628) (28,397) – (48,225)
Accumulated depreciation, 

December 31, 2003 78,750 5,872 480,225 242,686 – 807,533

Net carrying amounts, 
December 31, 2003 397,325 32,413 420,186 168,584 – 1,018,508

Net carrying amounts, 
December 31, 2002 371,164 39,530 273,506 161,958 88,893 935,051

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003  (cont’d)
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2003 2002
4. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES ($000’s) ($000’s)

Balance January 1 54,133 61,348
Additions/(Disposals) 7,467 (7,637)
Depreciation for the year (736) (520)
Depreciation on disposals – 942

Balance December 31 60,864 54,133

Investment Property at cost 66,566 59,099
Accumulated depreciation (5,702) (4,966)

Net carrying amount 60,864 54,133

Management estimates the fair value of the investment properties to be in excess of the net carrying
value.

The property rental income earned by the Group during the year from its investment properties
amounted to $10.5 million (2002: $10.3 million).  Direct operating expenses arising on the investment
properties in the period amounted to $4.6 million (2002: $5.9 million).

5. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances consist of cash on hand, balances with banks and highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less. They are carried at cost, which approximates their fair
value. Also included are statutory reserves deposited with the Central Bank of Trinidad and Tobago,
which amount to $39 million (2002: $25 million) and deposits pledged by the insurance companies
with the Supervisor of Insurance of $119 million (2002: $103 million).

For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, the cash and cash equivalents comprise the following: 

2003 2002
($000’s) ($000’s)

Cash and bank balances 491,674 526,103
Bank overdrafts and short term debt (Note 12) (904) (5,115)

490,770 520,988
6. GOODWILL

Balance January 1 2,304 2,350
Acquisition of subsidiary – 1,790
Amortisation for the year (1,170) (1,836)

Balance December 31 1,134 2,304

Goodwill at cost 17,361 17,361
Accumulated amortisation (16,227) (15,057)

Net carrying amount 1,134 2,304

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003  (cont’d)
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2003 2002
7. INVESTMENTS ($000’s) ($000’s)

Held to maturity
Corporate bonds 98,764 92,669
Government securities 173,433 187,262

272,197 279,931
Available for sale
Quoted securities 325,272 191,919
Bonds and debentures 167,105 –
Mutual funds 4,279 3,443
Unquoted securities 7,738 8,003

504,394 203,365
Held for trading
Bonds and debentures 174,497 206,151
Quoted securities 14,890 5,490
Other securities 2 39

189,389 211,680

The unrealised gain recognised on the revaluation of the held for trading securities amounted to $1.2
million (net) (2002: $1.6 million) for the year.

The market value of government securities classified as held to maturity investments amounted to
$187.3 million (2002: $200.4 million) at the balance sheet date.

Securities pledged

The Group’s insurance subsidiaries have pledged investments and other assets amounting to $637
million (2002: $521 million) to the Supervisors of Insurance in Trinidad and Tobago and the overseas
territories in which they operate.

2003 2002
8. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLE ($000’s) ($000’s)

Hire purchase 558,294 537,264
Finance leases 110,384 91,917
Premium financing 9,505 9,752
Other loans 644,350 540,037

1,322,533 1,178,970
Less: Unearned finance charges (111,134) (103,405)

1,211,399 1,075,565
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (32,986) (25,850)

1,178,413 1,049,715
Current portion (162,411) (135,369)

1,016,002  914,346

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Maturity profile of loans and interest receivable

Amounts due:
Within 1 year 162,411 135,369
2 to 5 years 445,779 511,340
Over 5 years 570,223 403,006 

1,178,413 1,049,715

This balance includes amounts receivable under hire purchase and finance lease agreements  in
the financial statements of the various subsidiary companies that are financial institutions. Also
included are other interest bearing loans and receivables of the Group, which are stated at principal
outstanding plus accrued interest. 

2003 2002
9. INVENTORIES ($000’s) ($000’s)

Raw materials and work in progress 134,636 100,199
Finished goods and returnable containers 325,645 304,459
Consumables and spares 52,232 58,092

512,513 462,750

10. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade 289,286 268,256
Other 160,594 199,791

449,880 468,047

11. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade 360,330 160,366
Due to related parties 32,621 75,084
Other 341,404 373,826

734,355 609,276

Amounts due to related parties are deposits held on behalf of Anthony N Sabga Limited.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003  (cont’d)
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2003 2002
12. BORROWINGS AND MEDIUM AND LONG TERM DEBT ($000’s) ($000’s)

Short Term Borrowings
Bank overdrafts and short term debt 904 5,115
Current portion of medium and long term debt 20,839 19,290

21,743 24,405
Medium and long term debt
Amounts  payable:

Within 1 year 20,839 19,290
2 to 5 years 12,406 16,899
Over 5 years – 307

33,245 36,496
Current portion (20,839) (19,290)

12,406 17,206

Security
Short term borrowings and medium and long term debt are secured by mortgages and debentures
creating fixed and floating charges on the assets of certain subsidiaries.

Interest charges on short term borrowings and medium and long term debt vary between 6.5% to
10% per annum.

2003 2002
13. AMOUNTS DUE TO DEPOSITORS ($000’s) ($000’s)

Amounts due within:
One year 552,251 576,860
Over one year 221,347 108,505

773,598 685,365

This balance represents deposit liabilities and other fund raising instruments included in the financial
statements of the various subsidiary companies that are financial institutions.

2003 2002
14. BONDS PAYABLE ($000’s) ($000’s)

Fixed rate bonds (2001 – 2016) 783,546 782,892

Interest on these bonds is payable quarterly in arrears and accrues at the fixed interest rate of
12.625% per annum. The bonds are secured by a charge on certain interest bearing assets of the
Group. The bonds are payable by a single bullet payment on the maturity date (June 2016), however
the Company has the option to repay the bonds after the expiration of seven years.

The Parent Company and its subsidiaries must comply with certain restrictive covenants as defined
in the respective Trust Deeds.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2003 2002
15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS ($000’s) ($000’s)

Employee benefit asset
Trinidad & Tobago Plans (see note 15(a) ) 123,287 63,660

Employee benefit liability
Trinidad & Tobago Plans (see note 15(a) ) 24,227 20,237
Overseas Plans (see note 15(b) ) 4,127 6,277

28,354 26,514
(a)  Trinidad and Tobago Plans

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Defined benefit Post-retirement
pension plans health benefits

2002 2003 2003 2002
($000's) ($000's) ($000's) ($000's)

257,066 282,214 Present value of obligations 8,685 8,022

(624,488) (761,208) Fair value of plan assets – –

(367,422) (478,994) Benefit (surplus)/deficit 8,685 8,022

76,321 80,566 Unrecognised actuarial gains/ (losses) (276) (201)

(291,101) (398,428) Benefit (asset)/liability 8,409 7,821

227,441 275,141 Unrecognised portion – –

(63,660) (123,287) Recognised portion 8,409 7,821

Based on the report of the Pension Plans' actuary, the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of reductions in future contributions to the defined benefit plans has been
limited in accordance with IAS 19.

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:

Defined benefit Post-retirement
pension plans health benefits

2002 2003 2003 2002
($000's) ($000's) ($000's) ($000's)

7,830 8,693 Current service cost 580 291

1,041 – Curtailment of service – –

19,388 18,349 Interest on obligation 623 703

(26,576) (16,134) Recognised gain (34) (222)

(51,077) (49,954) Expected return on plan assets – –

(49,394) (39,046) 1,169 772

39,521 (13,827) (Decrease) / Increase in 
unrecognised portion – –

(9,873) (52,873) Recognised portion 1,169 772

108,019 127,278 Actual return on plan assets – –

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003  (cont’d)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003  (cont’d)

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

Movements in the net (asset)/liability recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Defined benefit Post-retirement
pension plans health benefits

2002 2003 2003 2002
($000's) ($000's) ($000's) ($000's)
(47,202) (63,660) Net (asset)/liability at start of year 7,821 7,689

Net (income)/expense recognised in the 
(9,873) (52,873) income statement 1,169 772

(6,585) (6,754) Contributions paid (581) (640)

(63,660) (123,287) Net (asset)/liability at end of year 8,409 7,821

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date:
2003 2002

Discount rate at December 31 7.0% 7.5%
Expected return on plan assets at December 31 8% 8%
Future salary increases 3.5 – 5.5 % 3%-6%

Provision is also made in accordance with IAS 19 for other employee benefit liabilities in accordance
with the terms of the industrial agreements in effect.

2003 2002
($000's) ($000's)

Post-retirement health benefits 8,409 7,821
Other employee benefit liabilities 15,818 12,416

24,227 20,237

(b)   Overseas Plans

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:
Defined benefit
pension plans

2003 2002
($000’s) ($000’s)

Present value of obligations 34,506 29,715
Fair value of plan assets (33,284) (29,017)
Benefit deficit 1,222 698
Unrecognised actuarial gain 2,905 2,307

Net liability recognised in the balance sheet 4,127 3,005
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:
Defined benefit
pension plans

2003 2002
($000’s) ($000’s)

Current service cost 1,138 901
Interest on obligation 1,849 2,070
Past service costs 2,293 –
Expected return on plan assets (1,803) (1,491)
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognised (430) 327

Total recognised in the income statement 3,047 1,807

Actual return on plan assets 2,636 1,178

Movement in net liability recognised in the balance sheet is as follows:

Net liability at start of year 3,005 3,648
Net expense recognised in the income statement 3,047 1,807
Contributions paid (1,925) (2,450)

Net liability at end of year 4,127 3,005

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date:
2003 2002

Discount rate at December 31 6% 6%
Expected return on plan assets at December 31 6% 6%
Future salary increases 3.5% 5%

2003 2002
($000’s) ($000’s)

Pension plan liability 4,127 3,005
Other employee benefit liabilities – 3,272

4,127 6,277

2003 2002
16. STATED CAPITAL ($000’s) ($000’s)

Authorised
2,500 6% Cumulative Preference shares of no par value
Unlimited Ordinary Shares of no par value

Issued and Fully Paid
1,630 6% Cumulative Preference shares of no par value 163 163

174,079,312 Ordinary Shares of no par value converted into 
ordinary stock transferable in units of no par value 146,179 146,179

146,342 146,342

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003  (cont’d)
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The number of Ordinary Shares held in the Parent Company by various subsidiary companies (treasury
shares) at December 31, 2003, amounted to 3,864,029 (2002: 8,007,061).

In accordance with the Ordinary Resolution approved by members in the General Meeting dated
May 19, 1988, 6,000,000 stock units were allocated for stock options under the control of the Board
of Directors. Of that number, 2,570,000 were granted and exercised and 2,070,000 have been
granted but not yet exercised.

The Group operates an Employee Share Ownership Plan (ESOP) in which shares purchased by the
plan are vested in the names of three trustees. Participation in the plan is entirely voluntary and details
of the plan are as follows:

2003 2002
Number of members 374 371
Number of shares (000's) 1,597 1,476

Market value of shares held at December 31 ($000’s) 36,827 23,614

17. PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
2003 2002

($000’s) ($000’s)

Revenue 2,417,307 2,246,089

Cost of sales (1,458,795) (1,400,580)

Gross profit 958,512 845,509

Other income 200,921 103,417

Administrative, distribution and general costs (678,562) (518,959)

Operating profit 480,871 429,967

Administrative, distribution and general costs include the following:

Staff costs 250,989 216,993
Depreciation 116,176 110,654
Amortisation of goodwill 1,170 1,836
Directors' fees 40 47

18. THE ANSA McAL FOUNDATION

It was proposed and accepted by the Board of Directors that the Group discontinue the contribution
of 1% of pre-tax profits of the Group to the ANSA McAL Foundation with effect from January 1, 2003.
This decision was premised on the fact that the Foundation, with net assets of $52.7 million as at
March 31, 2003, was deemed to be self-financing.

16. STATED CAPITAL  (continued) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS
F OR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003  (c ont’d)
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2003 2002
19. TAXATION ($000’s) ($000’s)

Current year tax expense 72,625 81,770
Deferred tax expense/(income) 13,014 (1,758)

85,639 80,012
The provision for income tax is as follows:
Current:

Trinidad and Tobago 55,519 71,082
Other countries 17,106 10,688

72,625 81,770
Deferred:

Trinidad and Tobago 16,277 (6,079)
Other countries (3,263) 4,321

13,014 (1,758)

The following items represent the principal differences between income taxes computed at the
aggregate statutory tax rates of all jurisdictions and the Group’s effective overall tax rate:

2003 2002
($000’s) ($000’s)

Taxes at aggregate statutory tax rates of all jurisdictions:
Trinidad and Tobago 100,236 100,410
Other countries 16,921 14,886

117,157 115,296

Decreases resulting from:
Exempt income (38,425) (24,886)
Allowances (29,867) (34,343)
Effect on opening deferred tax of reduction in income tax rates (3,887) (16,802)
Adjustments to prior year tax provisions 2,790 (4,053)
Non-allowable expenses 37,864 36,171
Green Fund Levy 2,492 2,481
Other (2,485) 6,148

85,639 80,012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5 1

2003 2002
20. DEFERRED TAXATION ($000’s) ($000’s)

Significant components of the deferred tax asset are as follows:
Unused tax losses 1,866 4,603
Employee benefit liability, finance leases and other 32,290 10,364

34,156 14,967

Significant components of the deferred tax liability are as follows:
Property, plant and equipment 90,469 103,662
Employee benefit asset 36,986 19,098
Other 31,172 8,065

158,627 130,825

2003 2002
21. DIVIDENDS ($000’s) ($000’s)

6% Cumulative Preference 10 10
2003: 25c Interim ordinary – paid  (2002 –25c) 42,554 41,192
2002: 37c Final ordinary 61,447 57,342

104,011 98,544

During the year ended December 31, 2003, an interim dividend of 25 cents per ordinary share
(amounting to $ 42.5 million) was declared and paid. The 2002 final ordinary dividend of 37 cents per
ordinary share (amounting to $ 61.4 million) has been charged as an appropriation of revenue reserves
in the current year.

In addition, a further dividend of 40 cents per ordinary share (amounting to $ 68 million) in respect of
2003 has been declared by the Directors.

2003 2002
22. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES ($000's) ($000's)

Bills discounted, performance bonds and customs bonds 56,368 50,404

Insurance claims arising out of the July 27, 1990, attempted coup have been made against Trinidad
& Tobago Insurance Limited. Liability has been denied on the basis of the position taken by the
reinsurers and also legal advice obtained by the directors. No provision has been made in the
financial statements for these claims, but provision has been made for the estimated costs of
defending the legal actions arising therefrom.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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23. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are computed by relating profit attributable to ordinary shareholders to the
weighted average number of ordinary share units outstanding during the year.  The weighted average
number of shares has been adjusted for the removal of treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share are computed by relating profit attributable to ordinary shareholders to the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for the diluted options.

2003 2002
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 
(net of preference dividend) ($000’s) 243,172 203,814

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (000’s) – Basic 168,604 164,735

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (000’s) – Diluted 169,513 165,221

Basic earnings per share $1.44 $1.24

Diluted earnings per share $1.43 $ 1.23

2003 2002
24. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS ($000's) ($000's)

Contracts for capital expenditure and other commitments not 
accounted for in these financial statements 8,445 87,760

25. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company's operating businesses are organised and managed separately according to the nature
of products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers
different products and serves different markets.

The Manufacturing and Packaging segment is a diversified supplier of beverage, glass, chemicals and
paint products. The Automotive and Distribution segment provides services in passenger vehicles,
spare parts and household/consumer products. The Insurance and Financial Services segment
supplies life and general insurance, vehicle financing and merchant banking services. The Media,
Services and Parent company segment includes newspaper, radio, shipping and corporate services.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003  (cont’d)
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25. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)   Business Segments

Manufacturing Automotive Insurance & Media, Services and 
& Packaging & Distribution Financial Services Parent Company Total

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
$000’s $000’s $000’s $000’s $000’s $000’s $000’s $000’s $000’s $000’s

Total Gross 
Revenue 569,596 693,989 1,607,382 1,449,289 264,600 257,434 439,815 298,935 2,881,393 2,699,646

Less:
Inter-Group 86,146 226,107 50,246 41,265 15,878 14,036 311,816 172,150 464,086 453,557

Third Party 
Revenue 483,450 467,882 1,557,136 1,408,024 248,722 243,398 127,999 126,785 2,417,307 2,246,089

Third Party 
Revenue

Local 397,475 355,904 1,507,711 1,365,293 248,722 243,398 97,309 115,441 2,251,217 2,080,036
Export 85,975 111,978 49,425 42,731 – – 30,690 11,344 166,090 166,053

Total 483,450 467,882 1,557,136 1,408,024 248,722 243,398 127,999 126,785 2,417,307 2,246,089

Profit before
Taxation 137,864 119,207 122,294 118,125 76,288 55,798 45,909 30,352 382,355 323,482

Segment 
Assets 1,243,320 1,144,893 638,477 479,468 2,172,610 1,835,582 827,976 853,978 4,882,383 4,313,921

Segment
Liabilities 673,029 583,877 293,798 229,178 1,617,119 1,553,116 526,313 482,913 3,110,259 2,849,084

Capital 
Expenditure 121,656 112,251 25,670 15,950 68,799 56,798 20,687 14,222 236,812 199,221

Depreciation 
and 
Amortisation 58,807 56,287 16,719 18,649 33,606 29,660 8,214 7,894 117,346 112,490

Share of 
results of 
associate – – – – – – 5,007 3,578 5,007 3,578

(b) Geographical Segments

Trinidad & Tobago Overseas Total
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002

$000’s $000’s $000’s $000’s $000’s $000’s

Gross Revenue 2,001,814 2,025,025 879,579 674,621 2,881,393 2,699,646

Third Party Revenue 1,839,076 1,731,436 578,231 514,653 2,417,307 2,246,089

Profit  before Taxation 334,119 286,885 48,236 36,597 382,355 323,482

Segment Assets 4,035,185 3,549,804 847,198 764,117 4,882,383 4,313,921

Capital Expenditure 152,781 138,060 84,031 61,161 236,812 199,221

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair values

The estimated fair values of certain financial instruments have been determined using available
market information or other appropriate valuation methodologies that require considerable judgment
in interpreting market data and developing estimates. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein
are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Group could realise in a current market
exchange. The use of different assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material
effect on the estimated fair values.

The method and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for
which it is practical to estimate a value are as follows:

(i)   Short term financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of short term financial assets and liabilities comprising of the Group’s cash
and cash equivalents, short term borrowings, amounts due to depositors, trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables approximate their fair values because of the short
term maturities of these instruments.

(ii)   Investments

Investments in trading securities are stated at fair value based on market quotations, where
available. The fair value of government securities classified as held to maturity investments is
disclosed in Note 7. For other investments where market quotations are not available, fair values
are based on discounted cash flows or are estimated using quoted market prices of similar
investments. In the absence of a market value, discounted cash flows will approximate their
carrying values.

The estimated fair value for investments in performing loans is assumed to be equal to the
carrying values, as the inherent rates of interest in the portfolio approximate market conditions
and yield cash flow values which are substantially equal to the carrying value. Discounting the
contractual cash flows would approximate to the carrying values.

(iii)  Debt securities

The Group’s medium and long term debt and bonds payable consist of debt instruments which
bear interest at fixed rates and variable rates tied to market indicators. The fair value of the
Group’s variable and fixed rate debt is assumed to equate to their carrying value at year end.

Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Group to credit risk include trade accounts receivable
and the loans portfolio.

The Group considers its credit risk with trade accounts receivable and loans to be limited due to the
large number of customers comprising the Group’s customer base and their dispersion among
different industry segments. The Group grants credit based on evaluations of its customers’ financial
situation and continually monitors the exposure to potential losses from granting credit. The Group’s
loan portfolio is adequately secured and where necessary, provisions are established for potential
credit losses on delinquent accounts.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT S FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003  (cont’d)
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Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to its investment
portfolio. The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost by investing in a portfolio of fixed and variable
investment instruments over specific periods.

27. MONETARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DENOMINATED IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The aggregate value of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the
reporting currency:

2003 2002
($000’s) ($000’s)

Assets 668,835 530,031
Liabilities (241,621) (251,083)

427,214 278,948

28. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

1.     In November, 2003,  the Group’s subsidiary in Barbados, McEnearney Alstons (Barbados) Limited,
a company listed on the Barbados Stock Exchange, announced it had made an unconditional
offer to acquire the entire share capital of another listed company, A S Brydens & Sons
(Barbados) Limited. The offer became full and final on February 5, 2004, and by March 5, 2004,
95% of the issued share capital of A S Bryden & Sons (Barbados) Limited had been acquired. This
places McEnearney Alstons as the number one distributor in Barbados and significantly increases
the Group’s distribution network within the Caribbean. The company will be consolidated with
effect from April, 2004.

2.    On March 19, 2004, the Group announced that it would be reorganising its Financial Services
Division by way of selling its equity shareholding in the Tatil Group to ANSA Finance and Merchant
Bank Limited at a fair market value as at December 31, 2003. The proposed price will be based
on a value determined by an independent advisor, with the consideration to be paid in a new
issue of shares in the bank at the closing price on the stock exchange on the same date.  The
sale of the company’s equity is subject to an agreement being entered into between ANSA
McAL Limited and ANSA Finance and Merchant Bank Limited.

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003  (cont’d)
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29. SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARY INTERESTS

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of ANSA McAL Limited and the
consolidated subsidiaries listed as follows:

Company Country of Incorporation % Interest

Alstons Building Enterprises Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
Alstons Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
Alstons Marketing Company Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
Alstons Shipping Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
Alstons Travel Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
ANSA Automotive Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
ANSA Finance & Merchant Bank Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 56.52
ANSA McAL (US) Inc United States of America 100
ANSA McAL Chemicals Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
ANSA McAL International Trading Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
ANSA McAL Trading (Guyana) Limited Guyana 100
ANSA Technologies Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
Automatic Controls (1995) Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
Carib Brewery (St Kitts & Nevis) Limited St Kitts & Nevis 52.43
Carib Brewery Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
Carib Glassworks Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
Caribbean Development Company Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 80
Crown Industries Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
DCI Miami Inc United States of America 100
Grenada Breweries Limited Grenada 55.54
Hardware & Oilfield Equipment Company Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
McEnearney  Alstons (Barbados) Limited Barbados 47.49
McEnearney Business Machines Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
Penta Paints Caribbean Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
Promenade Development Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
Robinson Crusoe Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
Tatil Life Assurance Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 99.93
Tobago Marketing Company Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
Trinidad & Tobago Insurance Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
Trinidad Match Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 100
Trinidad Publishing Company Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 56.17
West Indies Glass Limited Jamaica 60

Significant associated company interest at December 31, 2003, is as follows:

Trinidad Lands Limited Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 40

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003  (cont’d)
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Report to the Members together with the Financial Statements for
the year ended December 31, 2003.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR
2003

($000 s)

Income attributable to shareholders 243,182

Deduct:
Dividends paid 
Preference – 6% 10
Ordinary – Interim - 25 cents per share 42,554

Final - 2002 - 37 cents per share 61,447

(104,011)           

Retained Income for the Year 139,171
Balance brought forward 741,114
Other movements on revenue reserves                                                                             (2,772)
Balance as at December 31, 2003 877,513

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of 25 cents per share was paid and the Directors have declared a final dividend of 40 cents
per share for the year ended December 31, 2003, making a total distribution on each share of 65 cents (2002:
$0.62).  The final dividend will be paid on June 14, 2004, to shareholders on the register of Ordinary Members
at May 27, 2004.

DIRECTORS

In accordance with the By-Law No.1 Paragraph 4.04 Messrs A Norman Sabga, Anthony N Sabga, CMT, C Anthony
Beaubrun, Gerry C Brooks, H C Glenn Castagne, W David Clarke, Stephen R Edghill, Grenfell Kissoon, David B
Sabga and Ray A Sumairsingh retire from the Board and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Ms Stephanie Daly and Mr David G Inglefield were appointed to the Board subsequent to the last General
Meeting and, in accordance with the Company's By-Laws, they retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

W KEITH WELCH
Corporate Secretary
April 11, 2004
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DIRECTORS INTERESTS

December 31, 2003 March 31, 2004

Notes Beneficial Non-Beneficial Beneficial Non-Beneficial

ANTHONY N SABGA, CMT     ( a )
A NORMAN SABGA ( b ) 523,070 1,597,235           523,070        1,597,235
GERRY C BROOKS 492 492
C ANTHONY BEAUBRUN 2,078 2,078
H C GLENN CASTAGNE 142 142
W DAVID CLARKE
STEPHANIE DALY
STEPHEN R EDGHILL 15,080 15,080
DAVID G INGLEFIELD
GRENFELL KISSOON
DAVID B SABGA ( c ) 126,404 126,404
RAY A SUMAIRSINGH 1,000 1,000

NOTES:
a)   Mr Anthony N Sabga has a beneficial interest in ANSA Investments Limited, and is the major 

shareholder of the Company.

b)   Mr A Norman Sabga has a beneficial interest in ANSA Investments Limited, and is a 
trustee of the Employee Profit Sharing Plan.

c)   Mr David B Sabga has a beneficial interest in ANSA Investments Limited.

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS

Ordinary Shares of No Par Value
As at March 31, 2004

ANSA Investments Limited 85,385,394

A substantial interest means one-twentieth or more of the issued share capital of the Company.
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we see the application of a concept
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we believe in the best ideas
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Seventy-fifth Annual Meeting of the Company will be held at the ANSA McAL
Limited Boardroom, 10th Floor, TATIL Building, 11 Maraval Road, Port of Spain on Friday, June 11, 2004, at 
2.30 p.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2003, and the  Report of the Auditors
thereon.

2. To re-elect Directors.

3. To re-appoint Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration in respect of the period ending
at the conclusion of the next Annual Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

W Keith Welch
Secretary

11th Floor, TATIL Building
11 Maraval Road, 
Port of Spain,
Trinidad, W.I. 
April 10, 2004 

NOTES:

1) A member entitled to attend and vote may appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote  instead of him.
A proxy need not also be a member.

A form of proxy is included for the use of members.  For this to be effective it must be stamped at the Board
of Inland Revenue to the value of 5 cents.

2) No service contracts were entered into between the Company and any of its Directors.

3) A shareholder which is a body corporate may, in lieu of appointing a proxy, authorise an individual, by
resolution of its directors or its governing body, to represent it at the Annual Meeting.
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REPUBLIC OF TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO

The Companies Act, 1995
(Section 144)

1. Name of Company: ANSA McAL LIMITED Company No.: A-1444 ( C )

2. Particulars of Meeting:

Seventy-fifth Annual Meeting of the Company to be held at the ANSA McAL Limited Boardroom, 
10th Floor, TATIL Building, 11 Maraval Road, Port of Spain on Friday June 11, 2004, at 2:30 p.m.

3. Solicitation:

It is intended to vote the Proxy solicited hereby (unless the Shareholder directs otherwise) 
in favour of all resolutions specified herein.

4. Any director s statement submitted pursuant to Section 76 (2):

No statement has been received from any Director of the Company pursuant to Section 76  
(2) of the Companies Act, 1995.

5. Any auditor s statement submitted pursuant to Section 171 (1):

No statement has been received from the Auditors of the Company pursuant to Section 171 
(1) of the Companies Act, 1995.

6. Any shareholder s proposal and/or statement submitted pursuant to Sections 116
(a) and 117 (2):

No proposal has been received from any Shareholder pursuant to Sections 116 (a) and 
117 (2) of the Companies Act, 1995.

DATE NAME AND TITLE SIGNATURE

April 10, 2004 W Keith Welch
Corporate Secretary
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The majority stockholder of ANSA McAL Limited is the ANSA Group.  In 1986, ANSA injected $30 million

into McAL and in 1990 it invested another $10 million to acquire a further 10 million shares.  The ANSA

investment represented fresh capital rather than the purchase of existing shares.

The ANSA Group comprises the following companies:

ANSA Investments Limited

Anthony N Sabga Limited

Bayside Towers Limited

Bell Furniture Industries Limited

Farmhouse Industries Limited

Norman Finance-Developments Limited

Standard Distributors (Barbados) Limited

Standard Distributors Limited

Standard Graphics Supplies Limited
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AUTOMOTIVE

BURMAC LIMITED

29 Richmond Street, Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel: (868) 623-2731-3

Fax: (868) 623-6882

Royal Road, San Fernando, Trinidad.

Tel: (686) 652-2741-3

Fax: (868) 652-6222

E-mail: burmac@tstt.net.tt

General Manager: Peter Rezende

BURMAC AIR CONDITIONING DIVISION

233 Western Main Road, Cocorite, Trinidad.

Tel: (868) 628-4305-6, (868) 628-4339

Fax: (868) 628-4345

E-mail: burmac@tstt.net.tt

General Manager: Brian De Caires

CARMAX

Cor Charles & Melbourne Streets, Port of Spain,

Trinidad.

Tel: (868) 623-2731

Fax: (868) 623-6882

City of Grand Bazaar, Valsayn, Trinidad.

Tel/Fax: (868) 663-3635

Web Page: www.carmaxtt.com

E-mail: carmaxtt@tstt.net.tt

General Manager: Jerome Borde

CLASSIC MOTORS

Cor Richmond and Charles Streets, Port of Spain,

Trinidad.

Tel: (868) 624-3714, (868) 624-6632

Fax: (868) 624-3376

E-mail: classicmotors@tstt.net.tt

Web Page: www.classicmotorstt.com

Managing Director: Jerome Borde

DIAMOND MOTORS

25 Richmond Street, Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel: (868) 625-2277 

Fax: (868) 623-6882

E-mail: neilmoh@diamondmotors.co.tt

General Manager: Neil Mohammed

McENEARNEY MOTORS

30 Richmond Street, Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel: (868) 625-3414-5, (868) 627-3673

Fax: (868) 625-2797

E-mail: mcmotors@tstt.net.tt

Managing Director: Jerome Borde

McENEARNEY QUALITY INC

Wildey, St Michael, Barbados.

Tel: (246) 467-2400

Fax: (246) 427-0764

E-mail: mcenearney@mcalbds.com

President/CEO: Mark Hamilton 

FINANCE

ANSA FINANCE AND MERCHANT BANK LTD
10 St Vincent Street, Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 623-8672 

Fax: (868) 624-8763 

E-mail: ansabank@tstt.net.tt

Managing Director: Ray A Sumairsingh

CONSOLIDATED FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
"Tamarind", Upper Collymore Rock, St Michael,

Barbados.

Tel:  (246) 467-2350

Fax: (246) 426-8626

E-mail: jmackenzie@mcablds.com

fparravicino@cf.mcalbds.com

President/CEO: John MacKenzie

BREWING

CARIB BREWERY LIMITED
Eastern Main Road, Champs Fleurs, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 662-2231-7

Fax: (868) 663-7004

Web Page: www.caribbeer.com

E-mail: andrew.sabga@caribbeer.com

Chief Executive Officer: Andrew N Sabga

CARIB BREWERY (ST KITTS & NEVIS) LIMITED
Buckley's Site, P O Box 1113, Basseterre, St Kitts.

Tel:  (869) 465-2309

Fax: (869) 465-0902

E-mail: markwilkin@caribsurf.com

Managing Director: Mark Wilkin
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GRENADA BREWERIES LIMITED
Grand Anse, St George's, Grenada.

Tel:  (473) 444-4248

Fax: (473) 444-4842

E-mail: hnm@caribsurf.com

Managing Director: Howard McEachrane

INSURANCE

TATIL LIFE ASSURANCE LIMITED
11 Maraval Road, Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 622-5351-9, (868) 628-1185-9

Fax: (868) 628-6545, (868) 628-0035

E-mail: info@tatil.co.tt

Managing Director: James Camacho

TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO INSURANCE LIMITED
11 Maraval Road, Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 622-5351-9, (868) 628-1185-9

Fax: (868) 628-0035  

E-mail: info@tatil.co.tt

Web Page: www.tatil.co.tt

Managing Director: Paul Traboulay

MEDIA

TRINIDAD BROADCASTING 
A Division of Trinidad Publishing Co Ltd

22-24 St Vincent Street, Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 623-9802-5, (868) 623-8871-9

Fax: (868) 625-1782  

E-mail: tbcadmin@ttol.co.tt

General Manager: Brandon Khan

TRINIDAD PUBLISHING COMPANY LIMITED
22-24 St Vincent Street, Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel: (868) 623-8870-9

Fax: (868) 625-7211  

E-mail: letters@ttol.co.tt

Web Page: www.guardian.co.tt

Managing Director: Grenfell Kissoon

REAL ESTATE

BAYSIDE WEST LIMITED
11th Floor, TATIL Bldg, 11 Maraval Road, 

Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 625-3670-5

Fax: (868) 624-8753  

E-mail: ansamcal@tstt.net.tt

Web Page: www.ansamcal.com

Chairman: Anthony N Sabga, CMT, Hon LL.D (UWI)

GRAND BAZAAR LIMITED
The City of Grand Bazaar

Churchill Roosevelt & Uriah Butler Highways,

Valsayn, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 662-2282,  (868) 662-2007

Fax: (868) 662-2007  

E-Mail: grandbazaar@tstt.net.tt

General Manager (Ag): Harrichanda Singh 

MAPLE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
11 Maraval Road, Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 622-5351-9, (868) 628-1185-9

Fax: (868) 628-0035  

E-mail:info@tatil.co.tt

Chairman: Anthony N Sabga, CMT, Hon LL.D (UWI)

O'MEARA HOLDINGS
11th Floor, TATIL Bldg, 11 Maraval Road, 

Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 625-3670-5

Fax: (868) 624-8753 

E-mail: ansamcal@tstt.net.tt

Chairman: Anthony N Sabga, CMT, Hon LL.D (UWI)

PROMENADE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED
11th Floor, TATIL Bldg, 11 Maraval Road, 

Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 625-3670-5

Fax: (868) 624-8753  

E-mail: ansamcal@tstt.net.tt

Chairman: Anthony N Sabga, CMT, Hon LL.D (UWI)

ROBINSON CRUSOE LIMITED
11th Floor, TATIL Bldg, 11 Maraval Road, 

Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 625-3670-5

Fax: (868) 624-8753  

E-mail: ansamcal@tstt.net.tt

Chairman: Anthony N Sabga, CMT, Hon LL.D (UWI)
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CLUB PIGEON POINT

P O Box 182, Scarborough, Tobago.

Tel/Fax: (868) 639-0601, (868) 639-8846

E-mail: isle_of_view@tstt.net.tt

Chairman: Anthony N Sabga, CMT, Hon LL. D (UWI)

TRINIDAD LANDS LIMITED
11th Floor, TATIL Bldg, 11 Maraval Road, 

Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 625-3670-5

Fax: (868) 624-8753  

E-mail: ansamcal@tstt.net.tt

Chairman: Anthony N Sabga, CMT, Hon LL. D (UWI)

MANUFACTURING

ALSTONS BUILDING ENTERPRISES LIMITED
Depot Road, Longdenville, Chaguanas, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 671-4272-3, (868) 665-5221-3

Fax: (868) 665-9673  

E-mail: abel@tstt.net.tt

Web page: www.abel.co.tt

Managing Director: Nicholas Mouttet

ANSA McAL CHEMICALS LIMITED
North Sea Drive, Point Lisas Industrial Estate,

Savonetta, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 636-9918, (868) 636-5380

Fax: (868) 636-9931 

E-mail: ansachem@tstt.net.tt

Managing Director: Derek De Caires

ANSA POLYMER
51-59 Tumpuna Road, Arima, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 643-1330, (868) 643-2615

Fax: (868) 643-1254

E-mail: polymer.sales@ansamcal.com

General Manager: Edward Kacal

BESTCRETE
Churchill Roosevelt Highway, Golden Grove,

Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 642-4703, (868) 642-4725

Fax: (868) 642-4815

E-mail: bestcrete@tstt.net.tt

Web page: www.abel.co.tt

General Manager: Dennis McSween

CARIB GLASSWORKS LIMITED
Eastern Main Road, Champs Fleurs, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 662-2331-7

Fax: (868) 663-1779  

E-mail: carglass@tstt.net.tt

Web Page: www.caribglass.com

Executive Chairman: Suresh K Dutta

General Manager: David Isaac

CROWN INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Uriah Butler Highway and Endeavour Road,

Chaguanas, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 671-2650, (868) 671-2665-7

Fax: (868) 671-2685  

E-mail: crown@ansamcal.com

General Manager: Eric Voss

PENTA PAINTS CARIBBEAN LIMITED
ANSA McAL Industrial Park, 51-59 Tumpuna Road, 

Guanapo, Arima, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 643-2425-8, (868) 643-5061-5

Fax: (868) 643-2509

General Manager: Roger Gillezeau

TRINIDAD MATCH
Maingot Street, Mount Hope, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 638-1974, (868) 638-5483

Fax: (868) 675-0084  

E-mail: trinmatch@tstt.net.tt

Web Page: www.trin-match.co.tt

General Manager: Michael Baiz

WEST INDIES GLASS
1 East Ashenheim Road, P O Box 146, Kingston 11,

Jamaica, W.I.

SERVICES

ALSTONS LIMITED
11th Floor, TATIL Bldg, 11 Maraval Road, 

Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 625-3671-5

Fax: (868) 624-8753  

E-mail: ansamcal@tstt.net.tt

Web Page: www.ansamcal.com

Chairman and Chief Executive: A Norman Sabga
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ALSTONS SHIPPING LIMITED
3 Abercromby Street, Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 625-2201-5, (868) 625-3034, 1521, 1437

Fax: (868) 625-3691, (868) 627-3368  

E-mail: admin@alstonsshipping.com

Web Page: www.alstonsshipping.com

Managing Director: Roger Flook

ALSTONS TRAVEL
67 Independence Square, Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 625-2201, (868) 625-3034, 1521, 1437

Fax: (868) 625-3682 

E-mail: alstonstravel@hotmail.com

General Manager: Anthony De Souza

ANSA McAL GUYANA LIMITED
Lot 1, Public Road, La Penitence, Georgetown,

Guyana.

Tel:  (592) 227-5286-91

Fax: (592) 227-5299  

E-mail: ansamcal@networksgy.com

Chairman: Jose Nivet

ANSA McAL (US) Inc
11403 NW 39th Street, Miami, FL 33178, USA.

Tel:  (305) 599-8766

Fax: (305) 599-8917  

E-mail: eugene.rice@ansamcalus.com

Web Page: www.ansamcalus.com

President: Eugene Rice

ANSA TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
40 Cipero Road, Victoria Village, 

San Fernando, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 657-7151, (868) 657-8015/4632

Fax: (868) 652-5575, (868) 652-6407

E-mail: ansatech@tstt.net.tt

Managing Director: Kemkaran Ramnath

McENEARNEY ALSTONS (BARBADOS) LIMITED
McEnearney Quality Complex, Wildey, 

St Michael, Barbados.

Tel:  (246) 467-2600

Fax: (246) 228-1619  

E-mail: headoffice@mcalbds.com

President/CEO: Stephen R Edghill

McAL SERVICES LIMITED
Meadow Road, Wildey, St Michael, Barbados.

Tel:  (246) 467-2648

Fax: (246) 427-5811  

E-mail: mfield@mcalbds.com

CEO: Michael Field

TRADING

ALSTONS MARKETING COMPANY LIMITED
Uriah Butler Highway & Endeavour Road,

Chaguanas, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 671-2713-20, (868) 671-4264-7

Fax: (868) 671-2857 

E-mail: amcolmtd@tstt.net.tt

Managing Director: Jose Nivet

ANSA McAL TRADING (GUYANA) LIMITED
Lot 1, Public Road, La Penitence, 

Georgetown, Guyana.

Tel:  (592) 227-5286-91

Fax: (592) 227-5299  

E-mail: ansamcal@networksgy.com

Deputy Chairman: Paul Chan-A-Sue

ANSA McAL TRADING (ST LUCIA) LIMITED
Cul de Sac, P O Box MF 7007, Castries, St Lucia.

Tel:  (758) 451-5913, (758) 485-1893

Fax: (758) 451-5361

Email: david.rice@ansamcal.com

Managing Director: David Rice

A S BRYDEN & SONS (BARBADOS) LIMITED
Barbarees Hill, St Michael, Barbados.

Tel: (246) 431-2600

Fax: (246) 426-0755

Email: barbados@brydens.com

Web page: www.brydens.com

Managing Director: Andrew C Lewis

BREWERIES DISTRIBUTION LIMITED (BDL)

Meadow Road, Wildey, St. Michael, Barbados.

Tel: (246) 467-2201-5, (246) 467-2265-6

Fax: (246) 436-7247

E-mail: bdl@mcalbds.com

General Manager: Gabrielle Ache
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DCI MIAMI, INC
11403 NW 39th Street, Miami, FL 33178, USA.

Tel:  (305) 591-0885

Fax: (305) 591-3104  

E-mail: caribbeer@caribbeerus.com

Chairman: Conrad O’Brien

HARDWARE & OILFIELD EQUIPMENT COMPANY
LIMITED
40 Cipero Road, San Fernando, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 652-3571-3, (868) 657-4632

Fax: (868) 652-6407  

E-mail: hoec@tstt.net.tt

Managing Director: Kemkaran Ramnath

McENEARNEY BUSINESS MACHINES LIMITED
34-36 Richmond Street, Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 625-1041

Fax: (868) 625-0086  

E-mail: mbm@ansamcal.com

Managing Director: Ricardo Lijertwood

STANDARD EQUIPMENT
34-36 Richmond Street, Port of Spain, Trinidad.

Tel:  (868) 671-2650, (868) 671-2665-7, 

(868) 625-1041

Fax: (868) 625-0086  

E-mail: stdequip@ansamcal.com

Managing Director: Ricardo Lijertwood

STOKES & BYNOE LIMITED
Meadow Road, Wildey, St Michael, Barbados.

Tel:  (246) 467-2200

Fax: (246) 436-8966  

E-mail: sb@mcalbds.com

President/CEO: Colin Da Silva

TOBAGO MARKETING COMPANY LIMITED
"Highmoor", Plymouth Road, Scarborough, Tobago.

Tel:  (868) 639-2455, (868) 639-2758

Fax: (868) 639-3624

General Manager/Director: Richard Lobo
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we see the answers to investment questions
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we search for the best solutions
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The undersigned shareholders of ANSA Mc AL Limited, hereby appoint Mr A Norman Sabga or, failing him,
Mr Anthony N Sabga, CMT, Directors of the Company or

as the nominee of the undersigned to attend and act for the undersigned and on behalf of the
undersigned to vote as indicated below on the Resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting
of the company to be held on Friday June 11, 2004, and at any adjournment thereof, in the same manner,
to the same extent and with the same powers as if the undersigned were present at the meeting or such
adjournment or adjournments thereof.

Dated this                                                                     day of                                                          2004

Signature

Name(s) in block capitals

Please indicate with a tick in the appropriate column below how you wish your proxy to vote on the
Resolutions referred to. If no such indication is given, the proxy will exercise his discretion as to how he votes
or whether he abstains from voting.

RESOLUTIONS FOR       AGAINST

Resolution 1
To receive the Financial Statements and the report of the Auditors thereon.

Resolution 2
To re- elect Directors

Mr A Norman Sabga

Mr Anthony N Sabga, CMT, HON LL.D (UWI)

Mr C Anthony Beaubrun

Mr Gerry C Brooks

Mr H C Glenn Castagne

Mr W David Clarke

Ms Stephanie Daly

Mr Stephen R Edghill

Mr David G Inglefield

Mr Grenfell Kissoon

Mr David B Sabga

Mr Ray A Sumairsingh

Resolution 3
To reappoint Auditors Ernst & Young and to authorise the Directors to fix 
their remuneration.

NOTES:
1. To be effective, the Form of Proxy or other authority (if any) must be deposited at the Registered

Office of the Company, 11th Floor, TATIL Building, 11 Maraval Road, Port of Spain, not later than
forty-eight hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting, and stamped by the Board
of Inland Revenue to the value of 5 cents.

2. Any alterations made in this Form of Proxy should be initialled.
3. If the appointor is a corporation, this Form of Proxy must be under its Common Seal or under the

hand of an officer of the corporation or attorney duly authorised in writing.
4. In the case of joint-holders, the signature of any one holder is sufficient but the names of all joint-

holders should be stated.
5. Return of a completed Form of Proxy will not preclude a member from attending and voting

personally at the meeting.

The Companies Act, (section 143 (1) )
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